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CHAIRMEN: 

VICE CHAIRMEN: 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
SENATORS: 

REPRESE~l'ATIVES: 

Senator Musto 
Representative Urban 

Senator Meyer 
Representative Jarmoc 

Soucher 

Alberts, Baram, Hovey, 
Mioli,· Mushinsky, Thompson 

SENATOR MuSTO: Goodafternoon. Welcome to the 
pl$lic hearing· for the Children's committee. 
we•ve got quite a few p~ople who are going to 
be test;.±fying today on several bills s~ I'd 
like to just let everybody know that as far as 
public test.imony goes, we are going to try to 
limit people to thz:ee minutes. If you do hear 
or see any signal that it's been three minutes, 
please summarize your remarks. Please don't 
just try to finish up what you're saying real 
fast, but go ahead and actually tell us sort of 
your one or two top points. And then you can 
probably e1~borate through questions from the 

·committee members that will have something t.o. 
-ask you. 

We do have a· big l.i-st here today. ·Madam Chair, · 
do you have anything you'd like to add? 

Okay. _In that case, we' 11 just start going 
through the list. First up is Senator Kane. 
Afternoon, Senator. · 

SENATOR KANE: Goc;>d afternoon, Senator Musto, 
Representa.t:ive Urban, Senator Boucher, 
Representat-ive Hovey, members of. the committee. 

··My name is Rob Kane and I represent the 32nd 
district in the s·tate Senate. I come- to you 
this afternoon to testify in support of,S.B. 
153-b ~ ACT PROVIDING A SAFE HARBOR FOR 
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EXPLOITED CHILDREN, and to strongly urge the 
·committee pass this bill. 

The tragedies that we read about all too often 
tends to harden us. And with few exceptions, 
nothing r.eally truly shocks us any more. ·one 
of those exceptions is stories about' children 
being se:xually abused or exploited. Every time 
I hear o.f such ·a horrific crime t •m f,illed with 
a variety of emotj.ons·, and. disgUs.ted that there 
are people wllo. would prey .on. innocent children. 
I'm saddened, I'm shocke~ that we do not punish 
these abusers more harshly. I'm also 
heartbroken for· t·~e loss of the innocence of a 
chi·ld. And I •m angered that there are not 
sufficient prqgrams or policies to help heal 
these children and repair t:he damage done to 
them. It i,s ·this desire to help· these abused 
children get the assistance tnat they need that 
spurred me to propose S.B. 153. 

This_b~ll as I propose creates a presumption 
.that any minor child.who· was engaged in 
··prostitu'tion was either forced or enticed to do 
so. It offers protection to a minor from 
criminal prosecution for actions that. they had 
no choice but to commit. 

My original proposal went well beyond the scope 
of the bill an~ required that the courts direct 
the child. into existing social service p'rograms 
and could offer assistance in safe and secure 
housi~g, crisis i'ntervention, counseling and· 
other communi t_y based servic~·s. It was sought 
to ensure that tbere was a· safe.ty ne.t in place . 

. . so that tho~e t.roubled chi-ldren do not fall 
through the cracks of our society. 

It 'is not enough to just l~t the minors go free 
and ~eturn ~hem to a situation that probably 
gave rise t~. their.crimes and troubles to begin 
with. We need to do more. We need to give 
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them a chance to rebuild their lives • 

This bill, modeled. on a similar proposal passed 
in New York two years· ago, seeks to addre_ss 
what is tragically all too a common problem. 
Some experts e~ti~ate tbat there are a hundred 
t_housand ch:i,.ldren; many as young as eleven 
years old· who are exploited through 
prostitution 'every year in the United S.tates ~ 
So_ while w~ may sit here today and think such a 
crime cannot happen·here, we are certainly 
wrong. I't does and can happen. It happens· far 
too more often than we would like to admit to 
Ol,lrselves .. 

. As members of a jus~ society we should be 
commi_.tted to ensuring that young victims of 
sexual exploi.tation are given every possible 
oppor~;unity to break free ·from emotional 
manipulation and abuse. 

The first logical st.ep is passing a state law 
that re·cognizes the· need to prote·ct, not 
punis)l, ch:i,ldrE7n anQ. young teens who are 
~pprehended for pro~titution. This bill before 
you today is .a start, but p·ossibly does not go 
far enough. I ask you to expand the bill to 
provide referral to exis~ing_ social services 
providers·· that w·ere- eliminated from my original 
proposal .. Th~se exploited and abused children 
need our help and deserve·every chance to 
reclaim their lives. 

Thapk you for the opportunity you.•ve given-me 
to testify and I'll be ·here to ·answer any of 
your questions that_you might have. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you, Senator Kane. Yes, 
Senator Meyer .. 

SENATOR MEYER: ~hanks, Rob. Are- you familiar with 
· the federal Mann Act, it•s called the Mann Act, 
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which prohibits taking" children across state 
lines fo~ purpose.s of prostitution? And I 
wondered if' you were familiar with that and 
wheth~r or not.·there was a kind of presumption 
built into that -federal law that your bill 
se·eks to build .into stat·e law? 

SENATOR KANE: Well, I think the. differ.ence I'm 
· vaguely f'amiliar, but not totally,· unlike 
yourself, pqssibly, Senator Meyer. But what 
our bill does'is -- says that the chi_ld is· a 
victim, ·not a cr.iminal. so·. we put the 

·pres.umption that ·they .a~e innocent of that 
particular crime. Whereas the current law, as 
o~ right now they cari still be charged with 
that partl.cular crime. And I think that's the 
basic difference. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Senator Boucher. 

SENATOR BOUCHER:· Thank you, Mr. Chairman and thank 
you Senator for bringing this to our attention. 
As can be se·en by the long list ot people that · 
have been signing up to testify you cert:ainly . 
have hit a c::;hord. So thallk you again for bring 
this to our attention . 

. SENATOR KANE: Thank you .. 

SENATOR ,MUSTO: Other questions from .members of the 
committee?. '!'hank you. very much, Senator Kane. 
Commiss~on.e:t· Hamil ton. 

Go.od afternoon, Commissioner. Commissioner, I 
understand.you•re·here on several different 
bills. I"f you could sort of give us, before 
you .move c;>n to a diff'erent bill, if you could 
just sort of highlight that for us so we .know 
what to flip to, I'd appreciate ·it so we can 

"follow along .closely . 

. COMMISSIONER SUSAN L. HAMILTON: Sure will . 
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SENATOR MEYER:· Can you-put "that into context, 
because on the surface ·it doesn't sound r1ght. 

TAMARA.KRAMER: Sure. So the term "investigation", I 
believe, and I'm not a lawye~ so I wi~l defer 
t·o DCF, but . -- thank you -- .the way the model 
WOrks in other States 1 When a Cal.l comes in tO. 
the hot line with a report, the committee will 
-- I·im sorry -·- the agency will take a look at 
the case. And instead of starting a formai 
investigation they will assess the need to the 
family, they'll look at what the report was and 
if a family.is believeQ to be low risk or 
moderate risk, they will skip that _.formal 
investigation process and. they will then be 
linked to. services. 

So a case worker takes on,· instead of· a kind of 
adversarial, investigatory relationship with 
the family~ they instead will hook the family 
up. with services in that community. And i know 
that DCF is working with the c9mmunities now· to 
a_s_sess their capabilities to take on this wor:k. 
And also, I think ours too, to.beef up that 
ability. So that .was addressed in my writ.ten 
testimony. and I encourage you to.look at it. · 
But we have found that children actually are 
either just as: Safe or even more Safe in this 
preferred process. 

SENATOR MuSTO: Quest=!-ons from other members of the 
committee·? Thank yeti very much for coming~ 

TAMARA KRAMER: Thank you-. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Elaine Zimmerman from the Commission 
on Children~ 

ELAINE ZIMMERMAN: Good afternoon, Senator Musto, 
members of the·committee. My name is Elaine 
Zimmerman, I'm the director of the Commission 
on Children and I '·m here to speak on behalf of 
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matched the dollars. So our partners are the 
· Gra~:stein Foundation and. Tow, .and should this 
bill pass, I'm·so glaq. we're before you and so 
glad to discuss with the foundations if they 
would like to partner on this, but wanted to he 
on re·cord reporting it . 

In reference to the grandparent visitation 
rights, I. testified on :this previou·sly with 
your Joint Committee of Aging. And given that 
we realized that we were coming up against 
Constitutional issues, I thin~ that it is so 
wise to f.qc:us: on training. · -So the· training for 
DCF in grandparent is·sues · makes total sense. 
We know that intergemerational activities are 
in the best interest of .children, it provides 
tutelage, i.t teaches kids history, there's more 
heart. 

I would also rec9mmend to you tbat in addition 
to the training w;i.t,h DCF that you consider 
putting this also· in our state ·required 
training for_ couples ·who are divo.rcing. 
B_ecaus.e ·.our state is one of the states· ·that 
r~·quires that· at the ·point of divorce you learn 
how to .work with your children at that _point 
and af:ter. And because we are seeing that 
grandparents get.-pushed out at the point of 
death, at the· point of a "new ·placement in a 
different family like ,foster care, and at the 
point. of d,i vord~, we might w~nt to think about 
embedd~ng t.hat in the training_ .that we do now, 
_which is qui·te ·good ·with the Judicial branch of 
couples. going through · di vorc.e. 

I I d like to be on record that the· com:miss_ion 
supports the· Senate BilJ. 153. ref~rring to 
children who might be p~rt of hu:man. 
traff.icking.. Th~ very first job I ever had was· 
with runaways ~ho were on the _street, who had 
aiready been .incest yict;i.ms. They were 
immediately·picked up by the.Mafia and 
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trafficked ·to .Nevada and many of them died. So 
it's time we really. looked at this in our 

.state. 

·And we also· support the bills relating to 
children and education placement when they are 
part of the system with· DcF·, going £rom_ place 
to place. But I would c~ution you that it is 
not-always the case that an-educational change 
-- that educational stability, going back to 
the same school is in the best interest. So if 
a child,. fpr example, turns ou,t· for what.ever 
.reaso~ to have an addiction problem, we want 
th.at child 'in a different school, you don't 
want the same community·. So we would keep the 
language in that talks about the best interest 
so that· we ' re looking case-by-case. 'Thank you. 

SENATOR MUSTO:· Senator Meyer. 

SENATOR MEYER:· Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Hi, 
Elaine·. 

ELAINE ZIMMERMAN:· Hi . 

SENATOR MEYER: You were in a battle. it looks like. 
What did you do to the other_person? 

ELAINE ZIMMERMAN: It's· just in case -- eve·rybody 
should know, ~ake sure your children are not in 
the sun too mu,ch. They just t.ook out basal 
cells and. I '11 b~ back t.o norm~l in a few days. 
Thank you. 

SENATOR MEYER: Great, great, great. House Bill. 
-5160 requires an anrtual report card evaluating 
progress of children. And you know,.thl.s 
committee, before I became a member, set ou,t .a 
goal of reducing child pove.rty. .I'm sure you 
were a part of that and many members at this 
table who were a part of it, too. Why wouldn't 
that be a good addition to this bill, to, among 
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Are there any other questions? 

Cari Cars.on? Connecticut Voices For Children. 

CARI CARSON: Good afternoon, Senator Musto and 
Repres~n·t:ati ~e Urban· and m~ml;>ers of the Select 
Committe~. on Children:. .lilly name is Cari Carson ·. 
and I am a policy fellow at Connecticut Voices 
For Children. 

·We supp.ort Senate Bil1 153-, AN ACT ·p~OVI~ING -A 
SAFE HARB-OR . FOR EXPLOITED CHILDREN. 
Prostitution of children oc;:curs here :i,.n­
Conpectic_ut. In· .less than two years, · DCF has 
responded· to·. reports o~ 25 victims of child sex 
tr~fficki.ng. ' These children have suf-fered 
·horr'j,f.ic abuses; sexual abuse, physical abuse, 
emoti:onal, ·abuse, coercion. In short, they are 
among. the_ most vulnerable of Connecticut·• s · 
children. -We. bel.ieve that these children are 
victims of commercial child sexual exploitation 
and in need-of services. They are not 
c;:itninals . 

This view is h_eld by DCF, law enforcement at a 
local, stat·e and national level and service 
providers. Last month_, DCF made official a 
proto-col for'identifying, assess'ing and serving 
victims of child prostitution. And local law 
enfore.ement agenc~es have also referred these 
.chilqren direc-tly to services rather than 
arresting them. In fact, in our .research with 
pUblic defer~ders and court o.fficials throughout 
the 'state, very few i,f apy children have been 
prqs·ecuted. for· pro~_titution in the state of 
Connecticut in. recent ·years·. These ef-for.ts in 
1~w enforcement should be commended' for this 
prd.gre_ssive app-roach to helping _out these 
vietim·s. of exploitation. · 

The current statute,· however, +ags behind 
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Connecticut practice. It allows children of 
any age ·to be· prosecuted for prostitution . 

..§ .. JL 153_-seeks to prevent this·, however, it is 
insufficient to prevent prostitution 
prosecution o_f children and provide services. 
Under the bill as c.urrently written, children 
c~n still be arrested and detained -- which can 
be trauma·tic for the children --·and prosec~ted 
·and adjudicated del~nquent if the preemmption 
bf coercion is rebutted. 

As such, we at Connect·icut Voic;es For Children 
have proposed a -revision of S..enete Bill 153, 
wh~ch_ yo.U can· ·find on page 5 of your testimony, 
it ··;s the l.ast page. This revision .states more 
clearly that children may not-be prosecuted for 
prostitutio~ and that they should be connected 
with se_rvices, as..._they are victims of child s·ex 
trafficking.' w~ :Qelieve this _rewrite brings 
Connecticut statute in line with current 
_progressive P.ract·ices in Connecticut and keeps 
thef;e· childr.en as victims of exploitat:ion: 
rather than as criminals. Thank you. so much .. 

SENATOR. MUSTO: Thank- you very· much. Are t_here· 
questions from members of the committee? 

I do havt7J a guestion·. What specific services 
are provided? Do we have a statute-or a rule 
on what specific. servi_ces are provided ·to 
victims of hu,man trafficking in Connecticut? 

cAAI CARSON: Under DCF•s new protocol, policy, it•s 
-- I believe it • s policy 3·1-10-6 .1, they do 
send a so.cial worker to investigate the . 
situation. Under this protocol a cl:lild will be 
evaluated at. hospital and then ~efer_red to 
~ervices as -the ·Department identifies., ·as any 
othe_r child 'victim of abuse or neglect would be 
served. ~hey•re looking into services 
specific~lly for child:victims of sex· 
trafficking, :Put right now, they would be 
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served within existing· DCF services.. The 
police.departments have links to other services 
as well.· 

SENATOR MUSTO: Other questions from members of the 
committee? Thank you very much. 

Allison Petit, representing Represe~tat.ive 
Hornish. Ms. Petit? 

ALLISON PETIT: J:Iello, "qty name is Allison· Petit. I 
am representing Amy Hornie;h, she is not 
avail.able to make. it today due· to prior 
com1_11i tments. ·I 1 m· her int·ern for. ·t·J::lis session. 
She wrote in !9\lpport of house Bill 5041, AN ACT 
CONCERNIN<;;_CROSS REPORTING OF CHILD ABUSE ANP 
ANI~ CRUELTY. I have her written testimony 
tha~ I 1 m .going to read. . 

Dear S.enator Musto, Representative Urb.an, 
Senator 'Meyer I R~pre·sentati ve Ja,nnoc and 
honorable members, of the Select Committ·ee on 
Children. I tha,nk the.· Select Coli).~ittee on 
Children for raising this bill of which I am in 
strong support. 

The link. t?et.ween violence against animals and 
vi.olence against people is we.il. documented.· 
_The FBI ·considers animal c.ruelty a reasonable 
predictor of violence_ and as such, ·uses animal 
cruelty as an-indicator when profili'ng serial 
killers. 

·In 1997 a survey or 50 of the largest.shelters 
for batte.red .women in the. United St·ates found 
that 85 percent of woman and 63 percent of . 
children ent.ering shelters discussed incidents 
of animal abuse ir~ their. households. This can 
be prob1~m·at.ic· 'if victims do not seek ·sanctuary 
.and/or professional help out of·· fear for the 
safety of their family pets . 
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we welc:ome you to the General Assembly and you 
did a great job, ·so thank you for being here. 

Any other questi_ons? Thar:1k you, Allison. 

Daniella Giordano? 

DANIELLA GIORDANO:· Go.od afterno~m, Senator ~us to, 
Representative Urban, meritbers of the Children 1 s 
Co~mittee. 

I part~cularly.wouid like to note that Senator 
Ed Meye~ i~ the· senator :of my home toWn, 
Branford. 

My ·name is Daniella Gior.dano. Arld I 1 m 
currentli a graduate studept at the University· 
of conriecticut .$chool o·f Social ·work., majoring 
in policy practice. I 1 m he.::r::e to testify in· 
·suppo_rt _·SB.153 with revision~ to stop 
persecuting victi~s· of child sexual .. 
exploitation as criminals, and. connecting these 
young people to. c~.ucial ser.Vices. My concern 
is· for children in _Connecticut under the .age of 
17, who at this point in time, enter the 
juvenile justice system as perpetra.tors· of 
prostitution. instead of .being considered 
vic;:tims of se~ trafficking when having engaged 
in . sex:ua.l· acts for money. 

This practice seems· at odds with_ ·Connecticut 
st.a:te law that ~sserts that until a person 
reaches age T6, .she or he is legally incapable 
of 'consenting to sex with someone ove:r the age 
of 18, which.most buyers of commercial sex are. 

The w~y t.he. law is written currently is blaming 
the victims who are sexually exploited by both 
t-raffickers and the adults buying. sex ~ith 
minors. Children ·get re-traumatized when being 
arrested and tried in court, .reducing the 
chances to have p:toductiv_e lives of 
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opportupities when given a criminal .record . 

Eighty to ninety percent of child trafficking 
v.ictims have been sexua'lly abused ·themselves. 
SB153 is a: good start to look. at how we 
approach and treat victims ·of child sexual 
exploitation. I:t ~ould eliminate the 
percep"tion and the voice that c·l.a-ims that 
minors can consent to commercial sexual acts 
and therefore, are at fault ·for being exploited 
i.n this way. The exploitation usual·ly is 
perpetrated by much ~lder men who may pose as. 
boyfriends'· -ca~etakers or protectors and later 
add to these roles; isolation from family and 
friends 1 ·threat of and. acts Q·f Violence to 
continue to coerce_young people to engage in 
prostitution. 

~cc~rding to the Polaris Project Action Center, 
a. ,le·aqing norip;-ofi~ organization combating 
human traffi~king,· a bill similar to .SB153 was 
pass.ed in New York in 2008. . Revising SB153 to 
.stop. the prosecution of young people under ·the 
age of 17 in the first place would be more in 
line with wl;lat safe. harbor bills are intended 
to accomplish .. ·. 

he new safe harbor bill could then pave the way 
for ident.ifyi,ng these victims of sex 
trafficking which woulQ. include the training of 
members of ···raw enforcement in being ap~e to do 
just that. Vj,.ctims of human tr-af·f.;ck,ing could 
then be· connected to existing crucial services. 
including counseling; medical care and .other 
social services like safe housing needed to 
reclaim their young lives. 

So I urgeyo~ ~n summary to revise·SB153 to 
stop prosecut.ing victims of child sex 
traff.icking· as criminals and c~nnect.ing them to 
services, knowing"that you•re $tanding up for 
the children of Connecticut, offering them a 
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. way to regain thei-r strength, dignity· and hope 
for a better future when they have real choices 
about their lives that are not determined by 
someone els_e 1 s agenda, but their own actions. 

I appreciate t_he· time that you have given _me to 
share- my views. and I. also would like to not.e 
that I do support the r~vision suggest~d by 
Connecticut ·vo_ices For Children. -

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you very much. Senator Meyer. 

SEN~TOR MEYER.: M_embers of the committee, Danielle 
is i_nde·ed, a very distinguis~ed. consti.tuent of 
mine. W~-th our respective spol_.lses we actually 

. att_end the same_ church together. And she has 
been·a major leader; not just with respect to· 
child protection artd social work generally, 
which is going-to.be her c~reer, but also with 
respect ~o prison reform-. 

So pa_n.i-ella, .let me ask you a questi-on, though.­
You 1 re inv;i.ting us_, I tl:link, to modify this 
bill to c_onnect it more with some servi~es for 
victims.· Do you want to elaborate- a bit C?n 
tha.t in terms -of. how we would modify this bill, 
amend this bill :ln. o~der· to add a reference to 
services? 

_DANI-E;LLA- GIORDANO: I think Cari Carson from the 
Connect-icut Voices For Children said it really 
eloquently, to really·connect the children, the 
young children that ar~.going to be identified 
--- sometimes thr.ough law enforcement, sometimes 
by. other. people -- to really connect t_hem to 
the services that DCF and- other co~munity 
center provide_rs already ll~ve in terms of, 
really, medical :care, safe housipg, counseling, 
anything that the· authorities would dete~ine 
appropriate for the young people that would be 
identified that way . 
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LUCY NOLAN: Yes, ,.. - access; yes - -.. and it •·s by 
federal. law. It's regulation -- USDA has 
it's a definition defined 'by the USDA. 

SENATOR MEYER: O~~y. I'm not·su~e. whether we're 
·allow~d, in· drafting legislation- to refer- ·to 
other legi_slation in other jurisdictions or 
not. We might have to define it ourselves. 

LUCY-NOLAN:· I can. get you a definition. I'd be 
happy to write up a definition for you. 

SE;NATOR MEYER: We can steal the definition. 

-LUCY NOLAN: Yeah, you can steal the definition, 
·which is what I ·would have done. 

SENATOR MEYER: Yeah. Right . Okay. Thanks . 

REP-. URB.Alil': Lucy, I think that's an excellent 
sug_gestion becau~e we· were -- you know, as we 
were looking at the report card and what we had 
initially· gotten back from program review and 

. investigation;·we want to expand on ·that and 
get indi.cato:ts that re~ily flesh out the · 
picture of what's happening to children in the 
state'of. Connecticut. So that's_ a great 
recommendatiop. Thank you and ~han~ you .for 
all y~:)Ur good, work. 

LUCY NOLAN: Thank you very much. 

REP. URBAN: Are there any other questions? I think 
we' re alt set, Lucy. Thank you. · 

April .Raczka, and if I messed that up, please 
tell me, Apri.l .. 

APRIL ·:RACZKA: Hi, good afternoon, no, you were 
correct. Raczka: is correct.· 

Good afternoqn, my name i~ April Raczka. I'.m 
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the director of th~ Sexual ~ssault Crisis 
Service of Hartford and New Britain regions. 

r 

_My organization provides free and confidential 
sexual assault cris.is ·counseling and advocacy 
to residemts ;in -- _actually over a 43 town 
region, which includes all of Hartford.County 
plti~ the town of Plymouth a~d part of Tolland. 
County a,S well. I'm also a family therapist, 
and in both roles I have the combined 
experience ·of:· over· ten years working with · 

·childreil: who have been victimized and sexually 
exploit~d. 

Our agenc1es have worked'on: several cases 
ipvolving. adUlts and children who have been 
forced into prostitution. Thi,s is of;ten not 
cpnsidered an option by childr~n or adults and 
the reality :ls that ·children do. not choose to 
be abus~d ... 

The.vast majority of those ~ho are involved in: 
trafficking are. currently .being sexually abus.ed 
at that hand~ of those who have promised them 
refuge .. · :tf the abuse is n:ot current. then they 
may·-have been victims in the past·. _Many times 
the!' victims have known no other 'lif~ but that 
wit:h w;hich sex without ·consent is considered. 
normal. They have not had x::ol~ mo~els o.r 
anyone to. protect them and the systems that are 
meant t_o· pro.tect them have failed them. 

I know this because I •ve w.orked person_ally with 
dozens.bf children and young women who- have 
reported directly to me that they were sexually 
exploited in order to create income for t~eir 
families. tn many instances those ch.ildren are 
e~ploited by those who were sexually assaulting 
them at home on a daily basis. 

As direct-or of the Hartford and New Britain 
Region Sexual Assault. Crisis Services, my staff 
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has· reported several cases ·t·o me, and some 
·quite recently in which adolescent males and 
females were. exploited by their parents or 
foster par~nts. I 1 ve rai"sed this in an e.ffort 
to ask that the·~e ch.ildrem a.re provided with 
the most comprehensive care and treatment 
rather than puni.shment. · I ask that we as 
advocates for children:, counselors and as human· 
beings c'ttil recognize that· this is not something 
a child or. adoleScent wants for themse1ves. 
They need help and-desperately. 

For this reason, -I ask that you support S. B. 
~ AN ACT •PR,OVID;I:NG SA,FE HARB_OR -FOR EXPLOI';t'EO 
CHI.LDREN. Rather than _punish young victims of 

· sexu·al exploitation, it 1 s our job and 
responsibility as adults; advocates and human 
beings to prote_ct them and to get them the 
treatment they need to thrive and. l.ive 
healthier· lives. 

And. I know that you .guys menti·oned ~ couple of 
times· who were. the treatment providers· and just 
so that you knqw, an agency such as ours does 
provide Short. term coUnseling, usually 

. somewhere. up -around th:ree months worth at a 
time. and we hav.e ~ccess to _long term 

·appropriate care providers as well. So we 
would be ·abie to connect them .. · Thank you. . 

SEN~ TOR MUSTO: T:b.ank you. Are there qu·estion~ ·from 
.merribers of the committee? 

Is there·one thing that you-would. suggest that 
we do to specifica~-ly ·help this population-? 
You know, I mean, we can writ·e in the law ·that 
we 1 r~ going. to provide · s~rv.ices a,nd then be 
tr~ated as victims. We cap write all this 
stuff dqwn. What·would be sort of the one 
thing _that m.ight help most_, · as far as from your 
experience? . 
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AP.RIL RACZKA: I was just taking a look at the DCF 
protocol py someone who was sitting next to me .. 
Ac'tually, from a representative from 
Connect·icut Sexual Assault Crisis Services, a:n,d 
I think that ··possibly changing that. :protocol to 
include co~ecting t·o our hot line· immediately 
would pe helpful. If that·· s something you 
could q_hange that would be re·ally helpful. Our 
hot line. is accessible 24 hours-, 7 days a week, 
so a:nyt;i"!lle the·se calls were to come in from 
wh~r-ever they w.ere coming from -- DCF, if it 
came through' l~w ·enforcement, ·if it came 
through a parent or care giver or something 
like that, ~.hen they could a,ccess us right away 
for counselii'lg on the· phone,· that sort of t·hirig 
-- if that's what you're asking. Like 
im~ediate access to-treat~ent, that sort of 
thing. 

SENATO.R MUSTO.: And is that somet,hing that -- I 
mean, that'~ something I don't thi~k the 
legi"slature ·would be that much involved in. 
that something that you've tried to talk to 
about tnat or --

Is 
DCF 

APRIL RAC.:ZKA: We haven't yet, but that '.s something 
we definitely would do. I mean, we get regular 
referrals, especially from the Hartford and 
Manchester arid New Britain DCF offices because. 
that•s· in our· territory. So some of the cases 
h~ve been s;imilar to those that were 
exp.loiti;ition .and tha,t sort of -- h~man· 
trafficking and that sort of thing. 

AS far as the law, I would ju·st support the 
Voices For Children in what they·have stated. 
Other· than that I don't have.anything else. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you. Are there quest~ons from 
other member.s of the co~miftee? Yes, 
Rep~esentative ·Thompson . 
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REP. THOMPSON: Good afternoon. You operate out of 
New Britain·as I understand it. One of the 
programs down there -- and I'm not sure I have 
the title r.ight -- Pathways Senderos -- you're 
very famiLiar with t~at? We. have given them, 
in t_he pa_st, very high grades for their teen 
pregnancy prevention program:and I wonder if 
that· has set any tone 'tha·t you might find 
effects the community diffe:r:ently than o~her 
programs in prevert~ing this typ~ of situation 
from occurring? 

APRIL AACZKA :· I • m not sure I understand wh;:t t you • re 
asking. Are you asking ·-- sets a tone -- as 
far as --

REP. THOMPSON:. Well, it seems that they have found 
a w~y to be -~ reach kids of the same age 
group. 

'APRIL RACZKA:. They haVE;!. And we a~tually have · 
programs in ·ou:r; buildi_ng at .th~ YWCA as well, 
where w~ • re hous·ed as our main office, which 
also runs pregnancy prevention programs as 
well. So if they're working with Pathways or 
if· they're working with th:e program that's in: 
our ·buildiilg,_then they have that acc~ss to the 
counseling and. to the referral, resources and 
advocacy as well. So I'm sure they've been 
very helpful. We found them as a :helpful 
resource to young girls·as well. 

~EP. THOMPSON: Thank you. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Any other questions· from members of 
the committee? Thank you very much. 

Anna Doroghazi. 

ANNA DOROGHAZI·: Senator Musto, Representative Urban 
and honorable members of the Select Committee 
on.Children, my .naroe•s Anna Ooroghazi arid tam 

3J.21.5~ 
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the director of public policy and communication 
.at Connecticut Sexual· Assault Crisis Services·. 
CONNSACS is the statewide assoc:i,at·ion of nine 
community based. rape crisis programs in 
Connecticut. Our mission is to. end sexual 
violence and en~ure high quality, 
comprehensive., and cul·turally competent sexual 
assaul.t. v'ic~im' s. services. 

Wht;m children under the age of seventeen are in 
eng_aged in :pros.titution it is difficult _to 
ima_gine that their participation does not 
irivolve coe:r;cion as de.fined in Section: 53A-192 
of the C:onnecticut Gener~l Stat1,1tes. Coerced 
se~. is r~pe and victims of sexual violence 
shou-ld be· protect-ed, not prosecuted urtde~ 
Connecticut law. S .. B "J 53-. AN ACT PROVIDING 
SAFE HARBOR ·FOR .EXPLOITED CHILDREN provides 
this protection. Teen_ ·and child· survivors of 
sexual vioience ·face myriad barriers to 
disclosing their abuse, including fear for 
their sa~e.ty 1 fear of their offender 1 fear of 
not being bel;ieved. They should not also have 
to £:ear -prosecution if.they reach out for 
support and a'ssis.tartce. The. proposed safe 
harbor law would ;remove one of the many 
barriers that exist for children who want to 
leave an exploitative situation. Pre~u-ming 

coercion in child: prostitution cas~s removes 
blame from young victi:ms, an.d places ·it on tho·se 
who are truly culpable, the pimps who pro.fit 
from the abuse of minors and the Johns who pay 
to hurt children. 

A Bureau of JUstice statistics special report 
found· .that between January 2007 and September 
20.08, 31.8 percent' of all human traffic~ing 
cases in the United States involved child . . . . . . 

prostitution. Although it "s pos.~ible for arty 
c~ild to· become the victim of sexual 
exploitation, certain populations are most at 
risk to .. become involved in prostitutio·n. A 
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2002 University of Pennsylvania study found 
that among runaway and homeless youth, 
apprmdmat:ely 30 percent of shelter youth and 
70 pe·rcent of street youth engaged in 

-prosti.tu1:·ion. ·l.n order to meet their ciaily needs 
fOJ;:' fooci, s}Je")."t!2r '· drugs and the like. Wh.en 
adult$· .take· ~dvani:age . of chi.ldren who are 
homel_~ss, ·hungry, suffe.ring from addiction or 
being i:raff:i,cked., they are preying: upon 
Vtil·n~rability arid t'~ey alone are account.able 
for their act:ions .. Victims are never guilty of 
their vi.c:timization .and young· victims of · · 
prostitu_tion de·serve the· ·pr6tect.ions that would 
be accorO.ed t·o them under the proposed safe 

· harbo;r l~gis.lation·. 
. ! . . 

Conn.·ec·ticut ·Sexual Assault Crisis Servic.es 
supports §Bl 5'3, AN ACT PROVIDING SAFE HARBOR 
FOR EXPLOITED CHILDREN and encourages all of 
·you to do the same. 

Thanks for giving_me the time to.speak and I'd 
be h~ppy to answer any questions that the 
committee has . 

SENATOR MUSTO: Are there any questions from members· 
of t:he .committee? We •ve heard a few times 
today that J?eople are supporting the Voices For 
Children aine;n.C;lni.ents that came up today. Do you 
·have an e>;pin:U:m ·on this? 

ANNA DO~OG~?:I: ·I. believe my organizati·on' s fine 
with all of •the amendments that were proposed 
by Connectic:;ut Voices For Chfidren. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Senato.r Meyer. 

SENATOR MEYER:· I 'had a question I p_robably should 
have asked some of the other earlier witnesses. 
What kind of a .track record do we have in the 
criminal justice syst~~ with re~pect to the 
prosecution of young ·people under the age· of 
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17? 

ANNA DORQGHAZI: To the .best of my knowledge there 
.have not·been many, i~ any, cases in which 
childre;n. have been prosecute4. My 
Understanding is that at ·this point it.' s left 
to judici~l 'discretion. From the perspective 
of Connecticut. Sexual Assault Cr"is;is Services, 
our int.erest is in removing a:ny possible 
barri~rS for people WhQ I d Wartt tO diS.ClOSe 
abuse'. And knowing that there ··s potential for · 
prosecution, is that it would be left up to a 
prosecutor,.to a judge to determine the fate of 
a child victim. We want to make su~e that 
children ~re a.s free as possible to come 
forward when. they've been victims. 

SENAT.OR MUSTO: Any other questions from members. of 
the committee? Thank you very much. 

Next is·Sarah Egan, the Center for Children in 
Hartford. 

:SARAH. EGAN: Good afternoon. ~y narn,e· is Sarah Egan . 
·I':m an attorney and director· of the Child ~use 
Project a.t the center for Children is Advocacy · 
in iiartf·ord, Connecticut and I'm here to" 
express my o~f·ic.e' s support for _ijgu§e Bill 155, 
the ·educational stability initiative for youth 
in fost~r care·, and also, for the Diffe:r::ential· 
.R~sponse bill. We are in support of that as 
welL 

My office has been very closely involved in 
bringing legislative initiatives regarding 
increasing ,educational s.tability for youth in. 
foster care. In fact, we believe this is the 
fourth year running that we have proposed or 
worked to help_ propose legislation. that·would 
allow youth in foste·r care who are removed from 
their towp to maintain thei.r ability to go to 
the school that they st:arted at,. ·otherwise 
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which would be the child's attorney·, the 
a$sistant .attorney generai, the parents! 
.attorney'"s or guardian ad litem who disagree 
wi.tn the determination of DCF would. be. able to 
seek redres.s regarding that determination. And 
this. is a long.:winded .answer and I apologize. 
W~ile any disptite.was pending, th~. child would 
stay put where they were. ~o Jolul would keep 
attending-wherever he was until the ~ispute was 
rectified. And then once a det·ermination had 
b~en .~C!-de eithe.r py he.aring off,icer or the 
court, tne child would then either stay put or 
go, depending on that. BUt again,. that·• s ·part 
of why there's ... a· presumption that the child 
should stay in ·their school or. origin. · 
Hopefully to cut down on the number ~f disputes 
that we.might ·have. Does that answer? 

REP .. BARAM: It does and thank you. for your _insight. 

REP. URBAN: Do we have any other questions? Thank 
you for your t.estimony. 

Next on our list is Nicole Vonoy, but I've been 
told that she ·had to leave so we're going to 
move on to Denise Holloman. 

KATHY MASCONE :· Actually, my name is Kathy Mascone· 
and I_ wanted to perhaps .read Nicole's t~·stimony 
on her.behalf, i"f th~t's possible, but it is 
·also submitted written, if you would p;refer to 
move. along. 

REP. URBAN: we·really are trying to move .along so 
as long .as we have her written testimony, I'd 
like to move on. .Bec~use Denise is a:l~o from 
Pau,l & Lisa so I think we're going to get ·tnat. 
Thank you so much. 

DENISE i-IOL~o~·= Good afternoon. My name is :Denise 
Holloman. I am with the Paul & Lisa program 
and I am goi~g to be read~ng a letter on behalf 

.. 
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of my executive director, Shaleen Sil~a . 

In 2001. ·a fami_ly memb.er of mine who was fifteen 
.at the time was recruited into prostitution.. A 
young teenage girl that left us as an innocent 
child came back to us a damaged soul. My 
·family and I had never h_eard of commercial 
sexual exploitation. The thought of 
prost·i tution n~ver crossed our minds as i.t had 
never ~ouched.9ur lives. We learned very 
quickly and it was very· heart wrenching. 

A ca~ing detective. recognized ~er_face from a 
.mis·sing poster while she was being P:t:Ocessed 
for .solicitation for prostitution and qu'ickly 
contacted us. We were by her side within 
hours .. When she came out of the room to greet 
us I was overwhelmed at the ch~nge I saw in 
her. I ha9 seen her several. weeks prior to the 
date. tha·t she qad went missing. ·And I couldn't 
believe ·my eyes. She was gone for 33 .days and 
she .had aged, she looked different as if 
something ·was. not there, something.was missing . 

I learned quickly about prostitution and what· 
·the victimization .was that these women and 
girls had. to enq.ure. However, this did not 
prepare .~s in any way for what the expeJ;"ience 
wo.uld be in assisting her. Services were not 
availabl~ to her that would assist her in a way· 
of getting the help she needed so· disparately. 
She left us as an innocent child and was 
.returned··to. ·us as an extremely damaged mind, 
body and· -spirit. And we are a white, midd,le 

· class family and we never imagined· that this 
could happen to us.. Her battle to get out o.f 
the life continued for eight·more years. 

Well, ~hat ·was many· year.s ago and I have been 
educat·ed .quite a bit more since then,. · The 
trauma, pain, hurt and degradation she suffered 
compelled me to find a way to educate 
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communities about what our children are up 
against and how we can protect them. Us as 
adults and caregivers, have to be empowered 
with the k:p.owledge of what to look for in our 
children, how to _react and what ·steps t:o take 
if ·our· children have been victimized. It is 
;imperative to listen to and be· nonjudgmental 
towards the child if·this occurs. These 
children need specialized se·rvices available to 
them that ·mu~t: include mental llealth and trauma 
therapy. If.· gone untreated. they become the 
women we•ve.serv:ed over the past nine years in 
Hartford apd Waterbury Community court. 

Wbat ·she is saying is that She urges this 
committee t·o support. the safe harbqr bill 
ass·ist·ili.g the children· in getting the ·help that 
they need. Thanks. 

REP. URBAN: Thank you, . Denise. Do we have any 
questions? I do not see any questions, thank 
yo~ for your testimony. 

Kiley Young . 

KILEY YOUNG: · Good afternoon, Representative Urban 
and members. of the Select Committee on 
Children. My name is Kiley Young and I am a 
student at. the Uni versi"ty of Conn·e.cticut ·school 
of Social Work.: Thank you for allowing me to 
testify before you today in support of Senate 
Bill 153. AN ACT. CONCERNING THE. TRANSFER OF 
EDUCATIONAL. CREDITS. 

Senate Bill 1.56 would rectify the credit. 
earriing disparity ~that currently exists between 
the Unified School District Number One, which 
is run by the Departm~nt of _Corrections, and 

. Unified School Distric·t· Number Two run by the 
Department of Children and Families, by 
requiring school districts to accept the 
c.redits earned by children and yoJ.;J.th 
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SKY LOTH: My ~arne is Sky Loth. I am add:r;-essing an 
additional.S.B. I was wondering if I could 
have an additional three ~inutes? 

RE:!? . URBAN: Sure .. 

SI{Y LOTH: .Thank you:. 

LAURA. KNOX: Good afternoon, Represent~tive Urban 
and members o·f the commit tee . We have a 
special greeting for Senator Boucher who has 
worked with us on l.egisl.ation abou:t teen dating 
violence ~nd human trafficking, ·and 
Representative ·Mioli who participates· in the 
child abuse p~lic awareness events we hold 
every yea·r at the sta·te capital. 

My name i,s Laura Knox and I am .f.ro"!ll the· Center 
for Youth ·Leadership, which is based· a.t Brein 
McMahon School in ,Norwal.lt.. Joining me is Sky 
Loth who is a.lso a member ·of the Center. 

On behal.f of _the 223 · student activists of the 
Cent.er for Youth Leadership we are here to 
testify in support of House· Bi~l 5041 and 
Senate· Bill 1S3. 

I'm goi.ng to skip .around, a bit in our written 
testimony '.just· for tim.e' s sake. We •11 talk 
first .about c:ross reporting. 

Child·abuse prevention has been the focus of 
our public awareness and sociai change 
.campaigns for ten years. Since 2oo·a we •ve been 
working on. pringing cross training and. cross 
reporting to animal control officers and 
Department of ~hildren and families c~se 
workers in lower .Fairfield County. ·To that 
end, ·we followed the outcomes of the meeting's 
that were conducted by Representative Urban's 
Task Force on. the Circle·of Violence . 
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some sort, of violent behavior towards an 
imaginary .animal. 

Although we support House Bill 5041, we're 
concerned-about "how it ·will be put into 
practice. We want it to work so here are a few 
things we think you should consider, some of 
whic:;h have -already been mentioned today. 

One. Wil.l DCF case workers and animal. con~rol 
officer.s ask about animal .cruelty and child 
abuse as a matter· ·of: routine? Will it_ be based 
on casual visual obs·ervation only? 

Two·. ,According to the bill, if the DCF case 
worker-notes animal cruelty during a home 
vi.sit, he or· she would need to report. it. 
We're copcerned· about the identity of the 
family and we want to make sure that there's 

_full confidential~ty. 

~d three,_·has an:yo~e assessed how House Bill 
504'1 w:i,ll assess. the training and:· w_ork with 
animal control officers, as well as who will 
put ~he training togethez:: for.the animal 
cont.z:ol officers and cas~ workers? 

We're happy to hear that the Co'!llmissioners of 
Agricultut:e and DCF are willing to wqrk 
together on that and lastly,_ we want to .see. who 
will design- and :implement an evaluat_ion to see 
how the law _is working three,_ six, nine months 
afte.I," it,' s enact.ed? 

We will ··continue to work to bring cross 
reporting of animal crue·lty and child abuse to 
lower Fairf:i,e1d Cc:>unty. 

Thank you so much for the opportunity to share· 
our thoughts with you. And here .is Sky Loth. 

SKY LOTH: As L~ura said, my name is Sky Loth and on 

. . 
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behalf. of the "222 members of the Center for 
Youth leadership, I'm here in suppo·rt of Senate 
Bill 153, SAFE _HARBOR FOR EXPLOITED CHILPREN. 

If you_are runaway or a throwaway kid, no one 
will ta~e you in, no aunt:;s, uncles, no 

· grandpa;-ents ~ A.. friend' s· :eamily thought about 
helpi~g, but then they thoUght again. You hit 
-the ·s-treets with the clothes on. your back and a 
slim sense of how you're going to ·make it. 

Some guy calls to you fr~m your car, you .ignore 
him. He is.still calling· yo:u two days later 
and four days after that. The car· looks nice, 
he seems friendly. You're hun,gry and you need 
~ place to 'sleep. Your gut tells you that 
stepping off the curb and into his car may not 
be the· ·best thing, but your gut also needs . 
food. So you step off the curb and into a 

."world of servicing men, none of whom you ltnow 
and l)orie of whom care who· you are .. The only 
one who cares is the pimp who traf.ficks you 

. from man ·to man, loc.ation to l·o·cation, with the 
occasional beating thrown in • 

According to the National Incidence Studies of 
Missing ar~:d Throwaway Children, of ·the 
estimated 1.5 million children who r1,.1n away: 
from home this year, tens of thousands of them 
will spend time·working for sexual predators 
and .selling their bodies.on the street. Many 
will be lured into prostitut·ion. within 40 hours 
of leaving ho:me. 

I •ve ·neve·r been trafficked nor have any of my 
friends-. · But we're concerned for teens in 
Connecticut ·who have, especiali.y if. Senate Bill 

~1.537does not become law. 

We've been working on trafficking since 2006, 
which is why we hosted a workshop ·that fe·atured 
experts from Save t.he Children, the U.S . 
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Attorney•·.s Office, the Permanent Commission on 
the Stat'-lS ·of Women and Micheline Slattery. 
Micheline•·s .story as a .restavec in Haiti is 
what compelled our members to act. 

Since then we have continued ·~ur research, led 
scores of public awareness activities and made 
a conscientio~sness-decision to focus on 
trafficking of children and teens.in the United 
State_s. We have come to the conclusion that 
states need to stop charging children, some as 
young as 11 and 12 years old, with prostitution 
and locking them up. Why re-traumat.ize the 
child who's been sexually exploited for someone 
else's gain? 

Connecticut is not alone in this approach. The 
Barton Child La~ and-Policy Clinic at the Emory 
University School of Law found that nearly all 
s~ates allow ~hildren of just about any age to 
be.prosecuted for prostitution even though 
children are too young to consent to sex with 
adu~ts. We believe every s"tate should provide 
sexually exploited children born in this 
country with the same protections. and services 
that are routinely granted to international 
victims. 

We are pleased to see that Senate Bill 153 has 
taken into ac~ount legislation enacted in New 
York, und~r which children arrested for 
pros.ti't'utioh would be presumed. to be vi~tims of 
sexual trafficking· and given pr:otection and 
social services. We do.not see any benefit to a 
teen or the state of Connecticut if the teen is 
locked up for .a crim~ that she was forc.ed into 
committing. 

. . 
As many people ha:ve noted, charging children 
with a c;rime of prostit1;1tion compounds the harm 
done to them and deepens feelings of guilt and 
worthlessness that haunts .vict·ims of. sexual 
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exploitation . 

Keeping children and teens outs of tne criminal 
. justice system and hooking them up with 
services is in keeping;with the growing 
movement in southern Fairfield .County. 
·Granted, neither deals with hardcore issues 
li~e trafficking, but -- excuse me. 

Finally, we agree with our friends at Love 146 
.and the Barnaba Insti.tute (inaudible) that the 
lartguage in Senate Bill 153 should -be changed 
to bring it line wi_th Conn~cticut 's Raise The · 
Age legislation, and to insure that prosecuting 
a c.hild for proetitutiop. is not an optio_n. The· 
,l~st thing someone my age needs is a criminal 
record for so~e.thing tha.t. I was forced t·o do 
against my will. That would stigmatize me and 
that may· c_ompromise my ability to· heal,. 
reconnect with my ·family and to f.ind a job or 
enroll in school. 

Thank you. 

REP. URBAN:· Do we have any questions? Senator 
·souche_r. 

SENATOR BOUCHER: Thank you, Ma~am Chairman. No 
questions, just a commendation on this· fine 
testimony. that ~hese terrific students from the 
Norwalk region have brought to us today. 

In fact, the level of discourse,. the level of 
analysis that you've done is on par not only 
with jus·t co-llege-age students, but also · 
members of our own legislature and ·-colleagues, 
:who've brought a.lot of analysis that we-­
·will actually benefit us in lookirig ~t the 
issue and looking at bqth .the pluses and the 
cons and the issues that could arise with this 
important legislation . 
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Thank you -for being here since 2:00 this 
afternoon, waiting so long to .testify, coming 
that long dist.apce under bad weather conditions 
.from a long dist'ance. And so we ~eally, really 

· apprecia.te ·the time that you •ve spent with: us 
·today. · Thaak you very much. for your f_ine 
testimony. 

REP. ~~: ·.'I would just like to echo Senator 
Boucl:ler's words. You did·a tremendous job and 
you certainly have given Us some things to 
think about on 5041. 

I wou~~-let you know, Laura, that we do· data 
tracking on, something called re.sults-based 
accouptab;i.lity on· any initiat-ive that I'm 
involved in. And I really apprec.iate the 
points that ·you brought up. And I hope we have 
the :.oppor.t.unity. to discuss them with you at 
length.. Repr·eseritati_ve Mioli. 

REP. MIOLI: Thank you, Sky, thank you very much. 
And just to echo what they· say, too.. I give 
you an A for this. Okay?· Thank you for 
coming. How are you getting home? Are you 
d,riv.l.ng? 

LAURA KNOX: No, we have our (-inaudible) . 

RE-P. MIOLI.: Okay. Good. Bye-bye. 

REP. URBAN: Thank you, ladies. 

Laura Herscovich. 

JACQUELINE KABAK:. Good afternoon, Repres.ent·ative 
Urban ~nd members of the Select Committee on 
Child~en. I just .want ·to let you know Laura 
Herscovich from the Connecticut -Juvenile 
j.ustice Line· is tied up in a meeting. I'm also 
with ··the Alliance artd would like to ask if I 
could testify in-her place . 
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REP. URBAN: Yes. State your name .for the record, 
though, please. 

JACQ'UELINE.KABAK: My name· is Jacqueline Kabak, I•m 
a policy fellow with the Connect.icut .Juvenile 
Justice Alliance. T_hank you so much for this 
opportunity t9 t_estify. · 

' The Alliance )mpports Senate ·Bill 156. which. 
would require. Connecticut school districts· to 
accept academic credits that children receive 
within DCF, Department of Chil9,ren and Families 
Unified School District N:umber Two.. This would 
be in the same_ way that 'th~y must accept 
credits f.rom· any youth re-entering their 
distri.c;:t from another school,. including the 
Depart_ment of Corrections Unified Sc:;hool 
District :Number One. We know this has also 
been ~ problem that •· s been going on in j uye~i le 
detention facilities and we would also support 
any statutory changes going forward that would 
help to.close that loophole . 

The proposed changes for USD2 credits is 
something that we don • t' view as co_ntroversiai. 
It·• s something that··we simply think needs to be 
corrected, it•s an oversight. But without the 
guarantee of credit acceptance for these 
students returning to their home· school, it is 
just a recipe for failure. 

Imagine- a -student coming after a yea:!;' long or 
two::-y~a·r long pla-cement, returning to their 

-home school and thinking they•re. a junior .and 
being t·old that they• re a freshman. It • s just 
an unfair situation that creates .frustrat-ion 
and a. likelihood to drop out,· which we all know 
is -- increases the r.isk arid is .kind of a 
direct -- can lead to a direct line of 
furthering delinquency . 
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So in t.he interest of time, I won • t· ~ead the . 
rest of my testimony. I just want·ed to say the 
Alliance ·is also in suppprt of Senate Bill 153, 
AN ACr PROVIDING A SA~E ~OR FOR EXPLOITED 
CHILDREN. · The Alliance is in. support of this. 
bill and in addition, the Allian~e supports t~e. 
language proposed by Co~ecticut Voices For 
Children. And again, I won•t read and ask that 
you pleas~ reaQ our testimony and it•s all 
included in there. 

REP. URBAN: Thank you,. are there any qu,estions? 
Representative Mioli. 

'REP. MIOLI: Thank you, Representative Urban. Hi, 
Jacqu,eline. I must ·c·larify. ·I've known 
Jacqu,eiirie since sh~ was a baby. She grew up 
eating my pizza and (inaudible)·: Listen, ·thank 
you very much.. :I; •m very happy to s·ee you he~e. 
You know., your ·testimony is good and keep your 
remarks coming and say 11Hi 11 to your parents. 
Thank you. 

JACQUELINE KABAK.: Thank you . 

REP. URBAN: You didn • t expect to come u,p ·here and 
be embarrassed, did you?: 

JACQUELINE KABAK: It's 5 o'clock and I'm ready for 
some pizza. 

REP. URBAN: Arty o.ther qu,estions for Jacqueline, the 
p.izza-eater? Thank you,·Jacqu,eline. 

JACQUELINE KABAK: Thank you, Representative Urban 
and Representative Mioli, and thank you for 
this opportunity to testify. 

REP. URBAN: Christina Tawadros. If.I've got your 
name wrong, please correct me. 

CHRISTINA TAWADROS: Thank you. I'm here to testify 
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on Senate Bill -153, AN ACT PROVIDING A SAF:E 
HARBOR FOR EXPLOITED CHILDREN. 

For the record my name_ is Christina Tawadros .. 
I am a.gradu~te ~tu~ent at the University of 
Co~ect~cut s·chool of Social Work, majoring in 
community organizing. I'm here to testify to 
support s·enate Bill 153 to stop persecuting 
victims of" child sexual trafficking" as 
criminals and providing these_young people· with 
protection and social services. 

I came out today as a student and .as a future 
social worker _to speak out about my.concerns 
for the well being of the children of 
Connecticut. Children under.the age of 17 are 
presently criminalized as perpetrators of 
pr.ostitution. instead of' being treated as 
victims of sex .trafficking when having ei;~.gc;~.ged 
in sexual acts for money. Conhecticut needs to 
stop tre~ting. wounded children. l.ike criminals. 
and p;-ovide thef!l. with services and safe houses, 
not j.ail cells. The way the law is currently 
written·· is. blaming. the victims who are sexually 
exploited by both traffickers and the adults 
buying the. sex of·minors. Children get re­
traumatized wh;en being arrested and tried. in 
court, reducing their chances to have 
productive live.s of opportunity when being 
given a criminal record. 

When m·any of us- think of sex· trafficking, we 
think of women and children being transported 
fromplace to place, often outside the_ country. 
All around the world we hear of horrific 
stories of ·children sold for sex, such as .in 
the. rural villages of Cambodia, Thailand and 
the Philippines. And while we he·ar about these 
~tories, we never think to fatho~ that such 
heinous crimes could happen.here in our own 
neighborhoods . 
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Furthermore, when it does happen --becaus~ it 
does -- we punish the poor children that have 
been victims of exploitation. I ask you, how 
does this make sense? On the surface it may 

·seem that if a person is selling their body for 
sex they should be. prosecuted. However, these­
children are forced or coerced into. sexual 
acts. I'm asking you to see the serious 
implications of such a law and how that re­
traumatizes the young peopl.e that are thrown 
into jail. 

·I'm not .~ parent, but- I am an- older sister and 
an aunt of·young children. I plead to all 
parents and anyone who cares about the well 
:Peing of the younger generation of the state of 
Connecticut.. Child victims of commercial 
sexual exploitation deserve to be given a 
chance for a better life, free from abuse. 

I urge you to support-Senate Bill 153 to stop 
prosecuting the victims of child sex 
traffick-ing .and rather, recognizing 
vulnerability and provide them the nec~ssary 

. serv-ices· that· will rebuild the children of 
Cortriecticut. 

Thank you for your time and I'd be happy to try 
to answer any of you:r: questions.· 

REP. URBAN: Thank you, Christina. Are there any 
questions? Thank you v~ry much for your 
testimony. 

Jessica Morneault. 

~ESSICA MORNEAULT; Good afternoon, Representative 
Urban and ~embers of the Select Committee on 
Childr~n. Thank you for allowing me to testify 
before you on Sena:te Bj] 1 numbe+ 1.53.,, AN ACT 
PROVIDING A SAFE HARBOR FOR EXPLOITED CHILDRE~. 
My.name is Jessica Morneault and I'm currently 
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a gradu~te student at the UCONN School of 
Social Work with a maJor in community 
organizing. I am here to testify in. support .of 
Senate B.ill 153, with an amend~ent ~o change 
the way the law addresses children under the 
age of 17 being sexually exploited through 
prostituti~n. 

My first full time job after my undergraduate 
education was with an agency that worked to end. 
commercial E!e:x;ual e~p1o:Ltation. Within this 
agen.cy in this position. I had the opportunity 
to work with women who had been arrested on 
charges ·of prostitut~on in a supportive group 
setting. So ·through the little. time that I. 
spent ·with each of these women'· .sometimes· only . 
meeting them once or ·twice, I' can safely say 
that. most· of ·these women ·were survivors of 
domest·ic violence,. rape, incest and child 
sexual abuse. There were many stor~es of rape 
by Johns or·being force9 ~o perform certain 
sexual acts not .agreed. upon .. 

This only leads me "to ·imagine the experiences 
of young girls, children sexually exploited by 
older men. If the law in Connecticut says that 
a child under_the age of 16 is unable to 
consent to sexual. ac.tivity, how can we safely 
say that by arresting young girls and.· boys for 
prostituting the~selves is them committing a 
crime· and. not a crime being committed against 
the~? How can· we blame a child fo;r·_his or her 
own ·sexual abuse. by a much older man? 

According to Prostitution ~es.earch and . 
1 Education, a nonprofit organization that 

conduct~ re~earch.on .prostitution, pornography 
and trafficking, the average age of entry into 
prostituti.on is 13 or i4 years of; age. Young, 
girl·s who are· prostituted by men often become 
involved, .in the indust·ry simply because of a 
l.ack of a. safe place· to .call home. MQst come 
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from d~ug addicted par¢nts, domest·ic and sexual 
v·iolence in the home and worse. Some are 
homeless getting involved with other men who 
force them ~nto the prostitution. And 
interest~ngly eno~gh, there girls r~rely ~f at 
all "keep the money or other goods they receive 
in return for sex. 

Instead of punishins these children, we must 
provide them with the services they despera-tely 
ne.ed to get out of the; commerci"al sex industry 
anci le~d healthy happy lives. Instead of J~il, 
these young children need positive environments 
and that demon·strate healthy relationships and 
boost t}?.eir self este.em. A child who grows up 
believing selling sex is the only: way to. live 
needs to shown anq encouraged to believe that 
other opportunities exist with the support of 
friends and family they likely never had. 

We must also beg~n to examine and.change the 
l.anguage we use from "women who prostitute 
themselves" -to ···women and young girls who are 
prosti-tuted by the men who solicit them." This 
bill is a step in the right dir~ction towards 
treating young girls and boys who are sexually· 
expl.oited as victims of a crime committed 

· agains·t them and· not them comm.it~ing a crime. 
Let us stop bl~ming the victim and address the 
real pe.rpetrat~rs of sexual exploitation, while 
at the .same time, providing necessary ·support 
for victims. I strongly urge you all to 
support Senat·e Bill· 153 .. Thank you so much for 
your time. 

REP. URBAN: .Thank you,· Jessica. Are there .any 
quest~ons·? Thank you :for you;r testimony. 

Emily Cahill. Welcome,· Emily. 

~MILY CAHILL: Good afternoon, Representative Urban 
and ciistinguished members of the committee. My 
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name is Emily Cahill and I am a graduate 
student at the University of Connecticut School 
of Social Work. I • m speaking in support of· 
Senate Bill 153, AN ACT P~OVIDING A SAFE HARBOR 
FOR EXPLO'ITED CH-ILDREN .. 

Under current·law, minors engaging in sexual 
acts for·eompensations can be arrested and 
charged with prostitution, .. whic];l subjects them 
to criminal penalties. The proposed 

"legislation.recognizes that the sexual 
~xploitat;ion of children. is not a: criminal 
justice iss.ue. It is a child welfare issue . 

.A.c.co;rding to the U.S. Department of Justice, 
the average age at which girls first become 
victims o.f prostitut·ion. fs 12 to _14 years old. 
For boys, the average. age of entry is 11 to 13 . 
. T~ese children. often come· from 'homes where they 
have been abus·ed or from familie·s that have . ' . . . 

neglected tP,em. It is common for children and 
te~nagers-to be coerced. into prostitution or 
enter a~·a way to support themselves 
financial'ly . 

Arr.est ,and prosecution are not the answer. 
Arrest can lead to re-victimization and shame, 
which only int·~nsifies the stigma and trauma 
the~e victi~s endure on the streets. Sexual 
exploitatidn is. a severe and widespread 
problem. Connecticut•s children and adolescent 
vict·ims need. our support and understanding, not 
c-riminal re.cords .. It would be more benefi:cial 
for our state to stop treating exploited 
chiidren and adolesce;nts as criminals and 
instead, we shoul,d identify them as victims and 
direqt .the tp 'outreach and support services to 
address the trauma ·the abused .have su:tf.ered at 
the hands of' their traffickers and-other 
adults. These youths are more at .risk for HIV 
and other serious illnesses as· well as loss of 
educat·i6nal opportunities and increased 
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vulnerability to abus·e . 
These children and adolescents· will require 
psychc>logical care in a safe environment to 
start the recovery process in hopes of 
restoring their strength and. sense of .self 
worth. 

Prosecution and arrest will not likely achieve 
these goals. I urge y_ou to support Senate Bill 
153 as a ·.step i~ ·helping exploited youth in 
Connecticut._ By passing this bill we will 
recognize them. as victims of trafficking a,nd 
not criminals. Thank you for your time. 

REP. URBAN: Thank you. Do we have any· questions? 
.Seeing none, thank you yery much, Emily. 

K~ren Jones. We~come, Karen. 

KAREN JONES: Good evening, ~epresentative Urban, 
members of the Select Committee on C:hildren, my 
name's Karen Jones and I'm an animal control 
officer. I'm here representing the Coruiecticut 
Municipal Anima-i Control Officers Association, 
which I''m currently serving as vice president. 

As currently p~oposed, we oppose.the raised 
bill number 50.41~. CROSS REPORTING OF CHILD 
ABUSE AND ANIMAL CRUELTY. While this proposed 
bill would be very benefic.ial to the welfare of 
children and anima~s, i·t comes. with many 

-questions and concerns-from an animal control 
officer's point Of view. 

The majority o~ animal control officers work 
.for loca~ police departments· directly or work 
closely with them. _r· would be surprised if ·any 
such officer would neglect reporting any 
suspect.ed child abuse case. If reporting is to· 
become mandatory. then there .mus,t be 
consideration for proper training· and protocol. · 
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their injured animals·to the vet. So there•s 
another -·- conflicting information on ·that. 

But I really appreciate your testimony here and 
I•in very much hoping and I will be getting in 
touch with yo~ to work on'the language so we 
can get it to a pl.ace wh~re it will w~rk for 
the ACOs as well as ·ocF, and ultimately, the 
children. 

Are there any questions for Karen? 

.I look forward to working with you, Karen. 

KAREN JO~ES: Thanlt you, Representative Urban. 

REP. URBAN: · Thank you. Frank Barnab.a .. 

FRANK BARNABA: Good afternoon; it•s great.to be 
here. I•m presid~nt of the Barnaba 'Institute 
and I want to thank Senator Musto and Senator 
Urban and this pr~stigious commit·tee for 
lett.ing me testify here for a few minutes . 

I •ve be.en in the fie·ld for 30 years, working 
with children and·c;:hild prostitution and I am 
very supportive of the .safe harbor bill 153·. 

I wanted to talk a little bit about law 
enforcement. And I have -- most of the 30 years 
I wo:r::ked profess;ion~lly and ten years before 
that, five-with Salvation Army and five wi~h 
Catholic Char~ties -- I•ve worked much of my 
t·ime in ~ew York City, but worked with many 
·runa:wa,ys from C~nnecticut in New York City. 

And I•ve h~d very, very good results ·with 
police of.f·icers·. We had a wonderful, wonderful 
program tha·t we got started. in New York City. 
And some of the good things that came out of 
tha.t -- I worked very extens,i vely with FBI and 
it ·was· several agents, we•d ju~t go by first 
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names, Pat,_ worked with me on the streets for 
almost four years. And the first night -- I 
always remember this so well, she said, '"Lo.ok; 

.I'm assigned here from Justice Department to 
work with you, but don't expect me to care 
about these·children or .anything else. That's 
not my thing." 

Well, I don't think we were out at 15 or 20 
minutes· .and .one of the girls I. wa~ working 
with, her name was Jeanie, was nine.months 
pregnant and s~ill prostituting and only 15 
years of age. And she was lying on the 
sidewalk in labor. And Pat jumped out, put her 
arms aro~nd her and said, "Don't worry, honey, 
don't worry, we'll get you right to the 
hospital in time.·.. And we just made it. And 
after that, Pat was just wonderful working with 
me and with all the children. 

I've had problems sometimes. One time we had a 
young girl from Oklahoma ~nd she was a very 
interesting girl. S:he was working on 27th 
Street and. really,· really getting the 
customers. :And we found out· what the problem 
was, sh~ was 15, she was at a party when she 
was 14 in Oklahoma City and just like all kids, 
was having a good time, and a police officer 
cam~ in, grabbed her by.the arm, slapped her 
across the face. That is a true 'thing because 
she.was res~sting what he call'ed arrest. 

Well, we worked a whole., whole year with her to 
·try to get her to leave and come back, get the 
charge taken off. I spoke to the officer, he 
said, "No problem, we will do this .. " We get 
her back to ·oklahoma. Boom, they're waiting at 
the airport with handcuffs. They handcuffed 
her, she -- we got her back out after five 
months, but then we lost her in New· Yqrk and 
two. years after that, we found her dying i.n the 
streets of New York. I will never forget that . 
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I j us.t wanted to share the importance though, 
of working'with police and we're just.starting 
to work with a major city in Connecticut that 
really want to know how to work with these 
kids_. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Seria.tor. Boucher. 

SENATOR BOUCHE~: TJ:lank you, si_r. Thank you for 
your testimony, compelling as it is. 

One of tl1e concerns I have and maybe t):lrough 
all our work in this area-, the sticky is_sue of 
when we redu·ce a penalty for s_omeone, does that 
also make them a target for others that would 
manipulate them because of their age and the 
fa~t that they would not be prosecut_ed, to 
encourage them to enlist younger and younger 
women into that area of business? . 

FRANK B~ABA: In ·answering that question, I think, 
yes,· that' ·s possible . 

One of-' the biggest problems of all of working 
wi.th c~ildren in prostitution, the;re. are no 
hotnes.-for -these .kids. The FBI receJ;ltly -- and 
I salute Mr. Mueller for ·doing this· --. they had 
many raids throughout the. United States·, and 
now. they ·are slowed down again for the same 
reas·on, they have no place to put these · 
children. So it is really a s~ri_ous P,rol;>lem. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Representative Thompson. 

REP. THOMPSON: You're famil-iar with -- what's the 
name_-- Covenant House·? 

FRANK'BARNABA: We do a lot of work with. Covenant 
House,· ~ lot of ·work.-

REP.· THOMPSON: And that 's right in the center of 
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Manhattan, I believe . 

FRANK BARNABA: Yes,· it is. It's on 41st Street. 

REP. THOMPSON: And ther~'s certain -- just the 
bigness of the city anQ so on -- the kids 
apparen.t1y ·find some· way getting to Coveriall:t 
House and I imagine police and everybody els.e 
refers them and so on. And that does provide a 
temporary way station f.or these kids, as I 
understand .. it . 

FRANK BARNABA: yeah, they cannot force them to stay 
there or anyth:i,ng like t;hat. So kids come and 
go. And Covenant House in recent.-- year-and-

. a-half, two years of really taking a big hit 
because of the recession, so they·· ve closed 
d,own a lot of their ·-- they have 21 other 
locations. And they·' ve closed down a lot of 
their --· there '.s no more stre~t outrea.ch, which 
is really a shame because they did help so many 
kids that way. An~ they're t~ying desperately 
to'get the funds they need. But it is 
th~y're wonderful people, they're warm people 
·and they' re caring people~ 

REP. THOMPSON: Well, I didn't realize they. were hit 
that bad -- . 

FRANK BARNABA: Oh, boy. 

REP. THOM~SON: I stil~ contribute, but I'm not a 
millionaire. 

FRANK B~ABA .. : ·so do I . 

REP. THOMPSON: I was just thinking what kind of 
place could we ·have here in a state :like 
Connecticut ~here, you know, !.think if you had 
a Covenant House probably kids would avoid it 
because of -- unless tbey were very desperate 
where you needed a meal ~nd so on and so forth . 
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But it doesn't seem there's a -- I don't know 
·-- is there someplace where -- right now-­
that.operates in our state- that will provide 
temporary? 

·· FRANK BARNABA: Not for thes.e_ types of children that 
I'm aware of, sir. But ·I think we sure need 
it. Thank you. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Other questions from members of the 
committee? 

Sir, have you-had a chance to read the bill? 

FRANK B~ABA: . Not yet _ _, no. I have not . I.' ve been 
very busy on another- proj·ect. I am supporting 
it. 

SENATOR MUSTO: If you do get·a chance to read it, 
~f you might send a letter to the Chairs, which 
we can distribute with any of your commen~s on 
it, we'd appreciate it. Thank you. 

FRANK BARNABA: Okay, my· director has kept me 
informe.d pretty well. Thank you .. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you. Raymond Bechard. Good 
afternoon. 

RAYMOND BECHARD:· Good evening. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Good evening. 

RAYMOND BECHARD: Senator, Representative and 
members of the-committee, thank you for 
addressing these issues. 

My name is Raymond Bechard. I'm with the 
Coalition Ag~inst Human Trafficking, an 
organization that works in building awareness 
and providing educational opportunities in the 
area of human trafficking . 
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I-'ye als.o served on the Connecticut Legislators: 
Domestic Violence in Immigrant Communities Task 
Force. I'm here today to speak in favor of 
Senate Bill 153, with revisions. 

In my work .as a·human rights advocate 
specializing in the fight against underage 
p:r::-ostitution and human trafficking, I've come 
to realize there is_an urgent need to 
aggressively address the issu.e of commercial 
sexual exploitation oth~r wise known a-s CSEC 
crimes here in Connecticut. 

Now, ·to clari-fy, the U.S. Department of Justice 
defines a CSEC crime as crimes of a sexua.l 
nature committ·ed against youthful victims 
younger than 18 years old, primarily or 
entirely for financial or economic reasons. 
Now, it's true of most of us, it's very hard to 
believe that CSEC crime exist in a widespread 
natu.re here· in Connecticut. It is veJ~Y hard to 
measure how these .crimes exist here simply 
bec~use it's a hidden crime. And much of 
criminal justice is not aware of what to look 
or in these .crimes·.· 

The realit;y is that several factors and 
these factors are outlined in my written 
testimony that .I'v~ given to the c9mmittee 
several factors hav:e creat.ed a perfect storm 
for CSEC vi·ctims here in Connecticut. 

And that's not the -- the.only reason I want to 
be here today l.s to· urge passage of 153, not 
only by using the language that is there, but 
adding language which reflects the standards 
simil.ar to federal law. Spec.ifically those set 
forth by the Trafficking·· Victims Protection Act 
-- or TVPA. -TV~A goes beyond tlle legal test of 
.coercion, wh;i.ch is s.et forth in S. B. 153 in the 
previous Connecticut law, and making it an. 
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illegal commercial_se~ acts, which are endorsed 
by -- and this is a quote -- "endorsed by 
force, fraud or coercion, or which the person 

. induced to pe-rform such_ an act does not .attain 
the age of. 18" , end quote . 

·In short, the standard adds the dynamic of 
"force·•i or "fraud" to those methods by which a 
young person can be induc_ed · t_o perf orrn 
.commercial sexual acts. It also states very 
clearly that anyone 17 years or younger is 
·protected within the legal safe harbor. 

CSEC crimes and the ability for criminal 
justice ·i'n Connecticut to prosecute· them ar.e 
best exemplified by ~he fed~r~l case of United 
States· versus·Dennis Paris, which was tried. 
here. in federal coui·t in Hartford. A· v_ery well 
known case in which s.ome of the victims were 14 
years old. They werenit brought in_from anther 
country, they weren't kidnapped .. They were 
~rom Vermont, they.were from New Hampshire, 
some were. recrui.ted out of Connect·:lcut high 
schools . 

Now, Connecticu·t la:w fell short to be able t_o 
prosecute thes_e crimes that were solel:y done, 
performed here in Connecticut so it had to be 
tried in Federal Court .. · We have a long way· to 
go in fighting CSEC crimes in Connecticut.. And 
the effort to protect these· young victims will 
i,nclude building awareness in law enforcement. 
schools and, the greater communi•ty. It will 
also involve passing and enf·orcing new. laws 
which ensure th~ prosecution. of those who 
exploit and abuse young people, promoting 
sexual services for money and those on whom the 
sexual acts are performed,- known as· pimps and 
Johns. Both are equally guilty of commercial 
sexual· exploitation. What. I'm talking about 
here is going beyond the fact of using 
coercion, but force or fraud. My argument 
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would be that the best safe harbor for these 
youi)g people is increased prosecution and 
reduced demand. 

Reducing demand will be the best safe harbor 
and: that is done by _reduc_ing the demand for 
these. victims. ·If there is a continued demand, 
if it's as easy to get these victims online as 
it is now ·-.- you cari order a you:ng girl onlii)_e 
as-easy as ordering a pizza and.have her 

.delivered to your hotel o;r home. If that 
demand.stays that easy, we will never get rid 
of this problem. · If the demand is reduced, the 
marke·t is reduced and these children will never 
be in harm's way _tq begin with. Thank you very 
much. 

SENATOR ~STO: Thank you. Senator Boucher. 

SENATOR BOUCHER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm 
act;ually:very.pleased that you were here to 
testify· because one of the things that has been 
·bothering me abo~t this issue is that it seems . 
to only be·ac;ldressing one side of this 
partic~lar problem. And that is the side of 
reducing the actual plan that we consider the 
victim. as bein~ an under aged girl, but in the 
process of_doing that are we actually making. 
them b~come easier targets? So that there's 
supposedly po legal cost to their ·engaging in 
activity and thereby increasing the . 
desirability -- would coerce or those that 
would force or use fraud to entice them into 
doing it because, you know, you're going to get 
off. scott-free, so it's okay, you can engage in 
this. · 

And the previous speaker did say that it might 
end up ·act~ally increasing that ·crime.. And you 
have at least brought forward the other side of. 
the coin is let's also then, make it a greater 
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penalty for those people that are using these 
young victims. We should be ·heavier handed 
with tho.se individuals t~at are actually 
putting those young girls in these terrible 
positto·ns and increasing the victtmization. 

RAYMOND BECHARD: I concur. For instance in Sweden, 
the· penaltit;!s· have be.come very heavy on the 
.Johrls ~ on the customers. And the reduction in 
prostitution and trafficking there is 
incredible. 

The other t~ing is again in going back to the. 
federal law, if we go to the legal test of 
.force, fraud or coercion for any age, i.t then 
1eaves·the'cr.ime of prostitut~on and then 
be·com~s a crime of human trafficking. · If we 
were 'tp ·apply .those same legal test here; 
f.orce, fraud or coercion -- right now for any 
age in Connecticut I believe it's just coercion 
-- you would then make it easier for · 
Connecticut ~rosecutors to prosecute crimina-ls 
for human t·rafficking laws rather than just a 
Class B misdemeano~, which pimping now is, 
promoting pro'stitution, which is 30 days. And 
they go in and out and do a 30 day stint like 
nothing. 

But if we provide s~fe harbor for victims who 
are Underage and at the same time: in,crease the 
prosecutoria1 tools that ~an be used to 
prosec·ute huJOan · trafficlt·ers.. which pimps are, 

· then we can make them really scared to do any 
busines·s in this. area. 

SENATOR BOUCHER: As I said, I ain really glad that 
you did br_ing this to our attention.· I'm hoping 
that the· commi t.tee will consider· that and· make 
this bill -- create two aspects, two parts to 
it, but given that it is the Chil~ren's 
committee, we may be onlY. able· to addr.ess those 
under aged,. _and then I would presume that it 
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would hav~ to go then to another committee, 
possibly the Judiciary Committ-ee. And in that 
committee they certainly could take a loa~ at 
it J?robab1y and you know, depending on the 
information they receive, maybe take it 
fu~ther. Bu;t at_1east for our committee, I'm 
hopeful that the· Chairs will consider these 
sugge·stions- that you • ve provided us and I much 
app·reciate. it. · Thank you. 

RAYMOND BECHARD: Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you very much. Reinna White? 

VOICE·: Reinna: Whit.e left. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Are you Regina? 

REGINA DYTON: I • m here as the manager of ·the 
Children's Advocacy Center, located in St. 
Francis Hpspital and Medical Center. · · 
Children·• s Advoe.acy Center means· that ·we • re 
accredited by the National Children's 
Orga:nizat·ion and are one of about 700 in the 
nation and five in Connecticut. We are. 
mandated by st·atute to provide a multi- · 
disciplin·acy response to child sexual ·abuse arid 
severe cases of physical abuse. ·under the 
Governor's Task Force on Neglected and Abused 
Children. 

I'm here on behalf of Bill 153 in support of 
i.t. I • m not going repeat the wonde.rful things 
that have been· said .. But I want to say .a:s part 
of the multi-disciplinary response, we se·rve 
five judicial districts and.'in addition to 
providing dire~t se+Vices, that is doing 
forensic interviews of children who allege 
abuse and ~aving that really serve as evidence 
for inves.tigation, prosecution and hopefully 
keeping young· children off the stand_ . 
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We me.et ;regularly to review the cases with the 
prosecu·tor from that district, ·the sergeant 
from that district, a medical professional 
who's .done the medical exams and DCF. So 
hopeful.ly, you know, all the heads were at the 
table to deal with it·. 

There are m~ny factors in why children don't 
reveal that they're being abused and in this 
case, commercially exploited for sex. But one 
of the most c.ommon is "You •·re going to be in 
trouble. i• And though we-• ve seen few ·cases of 
the 501 children we s~w in 2009 -- and we know 
that less· tha:n ten P:ercent of .child sex abuse 
is reported -- put in 2009, we saw 501 
children~ three of those cases had t9 do witb 
th~ sexual exploitation of-children. We know 
tha.t there are. many more . 

All children didn't tell sooner because they 
were told they'd get in trouble. For the 
children who were exploited, they were told, 
"You'll b~ arre~ted for prostitution. 1' They 
were told by their pimps, "I'll get a little 
·bit of time. I have money, it'll be nothing. 
You'll be in jail for prostitution and 
everybody will think you're a so-and-so, so­
and-:-S0.11 

So i.t •.s my hope that as we look at the 
development of this· pill: that we look at a way 
in wh~ch ·victims will be educat~d to know they 
won't be in trouble. And I absolutely say, 
plea.se, yes, let • s really jump on the 
prose.cution piece· of it. ~hat • s why I talked 
about-that. We have~ lot of issues in terms 
of resourc~s. in this state, I understand that. 

Juvenile divisions are kind of ~een as kiddie 
cops off on the corne·r. Their budgets aren't 
even on the radar_screen. We've got some pimps 
riding around Hartford now, we know who they 
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are. OJ.:l,e victim ·was in she's at"raid to tell 
about the other seven. One had to go in victim 
witness- protection because she had seen several 
murders. So thank you. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you for coming down. And for 
·waiting .for so long. 

REGINA DYTON: I ·thought it was important. 

SENATOR MUSTO: Any questions from m~mbers. of the 
committee? 

REGINA DYTON: I didn' t _hav.e time tO_ do it today_, 
but I do want to ask. the multi-disciplinary 
partners to submit something in writing to you·. 
But I' 11 be ·seeing them tomorrow. 

SENATOR MUSTO: -Thank yo~ very much. Is there 
any~ne else who did not sign up, but. would like 
to speak? 

In that case, I will close the ·meeting. Thank 
you very much .. 
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Testimony in support of S.B. i 53 
"Safe Harbor" for sexually eX:ploited minors 

Select Conun.lttee on Children February23, 2010 
Legislative Office Building 
300 Capitol Avenue 
Hartford, CT 06106 

Dear Senator Musto, Representative Urban and the Select Co~ttee on Children, 

l began my career wo~g SP.'cifically with victims of conunerci~ 5exual expioitation back in 1979. 
after meetiitg an eighteen year old. girl named Lisa M. who ·bad: been groomed by a man she thought was 
her boyfriend into the world of drugs and prostitution. · 

Alone .and ashamed, she did not feel she could tum tO her .family for support. After meeting Lisa by 
chance afadiner ~uring a.snowstorm, my wife, Audrey, and I began working with her to understand 
hQw an honors student from a goQd family fu Connecticut could fall prey to commercial sexual 
exploitation . 

After months of counseling Bod drug..:addiction therapy from ~ licensed clinician, Lisa was making 
significailt progress and planned to start ~ollege. But before she could succe.ssfully escape the massage 
parlor that exploited her, she was fo~d dead. with two men in New Haven. 

In her honor, Audrey and I helped form a non-profi.torganization·to combat the exploi~tion of women 
and children. Currently, I am the President ofthe Batnaba.lnstitute, a 501 {c) 3 non-profit or~tioil 
whose mission is to·taise awareness about human trafficking_ as it pertains to sexual exploitation through 
education. and media~ to provide professional training courses on how to identify·human trafficking 
victims and to provide s_upport, guiclance and care to at-risk, sexually exploited and trafficked youth and 
adults.- . 

Throughout my career in this field, I have assisted youth and women· trapped in commercial sexual 
exploitation an.d human trafficking. I haye been involved in cases where law·enforcem:ent treated the 
minor as a criminal and cases where law enforcement treated the minor as a victim. The latter worked 
the best and enabled the victim to be treated as a human being where ·she was referred to appropriate 
social services. 

I strongly support S·.B. 153 which will establish a presumption in prosecution of a person under the age 
of seventeen for prostitution that such person was a vicwn of the crime· of trafficking in persons. As the 
bill is currently Written, I feel that minor changes would greatly strength its effectiven~ss. TheSe 
suggestionS include: 

'24G WEST MAIN STREET • PMB 395 • CLINTON, CT 06413 • (860) 447-2060 • 
· www.barnabainstitute.org 

The Bamaba Institute is a iegistered ~1 (c) 3 non-profit ofrianization. Your contribution is tax deductible as provi_ded by law. 

,.. 
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a. ·Leniency in cases -where a childis arrested for other criinina1 offenses but is suspected to 
~e a·victim of sexual exploitation. Such offenses are often linked to theit exploitation 
and victirilization. 

b .. Alter the current language ofthe.billwhich removes all possibility for rebuttal or for 
defens~ to be lodged against the ·minor questioning her·coe~ion. 

c. Recommend that minors in prostitution c~ot be charged with prostitution after arrest, 
but rather referred by the judge to social services upon court hearing. Having charges of 
prostitution on.record, even sealed reco~s. is humiliating for the victim and can make it 
difficult for her to recover. 

d. Recomm.end-that.the age be raised to "under 18" to coordinate with ''Raise the Age" 
(Public Act 07-04) and the Federal Trafficking in Persons Act which:states that any 
minor under the age of 18 is a victim ofhuman trafficking. 

The following is an excerpt from Sabrina (name altered to protect her identity}, a suryivor of 
prostitution, who describes ·what it still feels like, even fifteen years later, to have prostitution­
related charges on her record: 

"I feel the· hardest obstacle is my criminaL background. I haven't -applied 
for sevez:al jobs because of ·that. I don't want to explain it. A lot of 
times I f~el like it would be better if.I had been arrested for drugs 
instead of loiterl.ng foi: the purpose of prostitution.· People ·are more 
accept_ing of drug addicts than prostitutes." 

It is my unde~ding froiD Senator"J{ane's office that this bill di41iot pass last year because it 
was confused a8 being unnecessary in light of laws already in effect. I respectfully disagree that 
the "Safe Harbor" bill.is unnecesSa.ry. In fact, New York State passed a similar "Safe Harbor'' 
law in 2008 8.fter five .ye~ Qf educating the legislator.; that state and federal laws do not 
inherently protect.min:oi'S in prostitution. "Safe Harbor''·specifically addresses minors iil 
prostitution so tha~ no child-can be prosecuted for prostitution under any circumstances. This 
saves the child from re~ttaumatization in cases defense presents evidence against the 
~ption of coercion. It is my experience that no minor can consent to prostitution. Every 
minor in, prostitUtion that I have worked with entered prostitution as a result of coerciQn, . 
m&nipulation, force and/or se~ assault. 

Thank you for considering S.B. 153, "Safe Harbor" for sexually ~ploited minors. Ifyou.have 
any questions, please· do not hesitate to contact m~ at 860-575-1195. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

.Trani N. 'Barna6a 
President 
The Barnaba ·Institute 

- ;azuom=r 
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Good afternoon Senator Musto, Representative Urban and other members of the 
Committee. 

My name is· Emily Cahill and I am a student at the University of Connecticut School of 
Social W9rk. I .am speaking in support of Senate Bill 153. An Act ProViding a Safe 
Harbor for Exploited Children. Uncler current law, minors engaging in sexual act,s for 
compens~tion. ·can be arrested and charged with prostitution, which subjects them to 
criminal peDa:i~es. The proposed legislation recognizes that the sexual exploitation of 
children is not a criminal justice issue; it is a child welfare issue. 

According to the U.S. Department of Justice, the average·age at which girls first become 
victims of prostitution is 12-14 ye~ old. For boys and transgender youth, the average 
age of entry is· 11-13. These children often come from homes where ~ey have been 
abused, or from families that have abandoned them. It is common for children and 
teenagers to ·J,e coerced into· prostitution or enter as a way to support themselves 
financially. Arrest and _prosecution are not the answer. Sending these youths to juvenile 
detention facilities are not the solution. Arrest ·will lead to re-victimization and shame 
which only· intensifies .the stigma and trauma these victims endure on th~ streets. 

Sexual exploitation is· a severe .and widespread problem. Connecticut's child and 
adolescent victims need out support· and understanding, not criminal records. It would be 
more beneficial for our state to. stop treating exploited children and adolescents ~ 
criminals. Instead, we should identify them as victiins and provide outreach and support 
services to· address the trauma these youths have suffered at the hands of their traffickers 
and other adults. These youths are at risk for HIV and other serious illnesses as well as 
loss of educationai opportunities, and increased vulnerability to abuse. These children 
and aclolescents will require psychological care in a save environment to start the 
recovery process in hopes of. restoring their strength and sense of self worth. Prosecution 
and arre_st will not likely achieve these goals. 

I urge. you to support Senate Bill 153 as a step in heipiD:g explpited. youths in Connecti~ut. 
By passing this bill, we will recognize them as victims of trafficking and not criminals. 
Thank you for your time. I'm happy to answer any questions you may have. 

Thank you . 



e. 

·-. 

• 

Connecticut State Legislative Session 2010 

Testimony to Uie Select Committee on C~lldren 

-Public Hearing Re: S.B. 153-An Act ProVIding a Safe Harbor ~r Exploited Children 

SUbmitted by Jesslca.Momeault 

:Good afternoon to all members or the Select Committee on Children. 

000135 

Thank you tOt allowing me to -testify before you on Senate Bill Number 153: An Act Providing a Safe Harbor for 
Exploited ChDdr:en. . 

My name Is J•Jca Morneault and. I am currently· a g~uate student~ the !JConn $chool of Social work with a 
major In ·community Qrganlzlng. lam here today testifYing In SlipiJQtt of S.B. 153 with .an amendment to change the 
way the law addi'eises children uilder ·the age of seventeen being ·sexiia!IY exploited through prostitution. 

My first full tlmt;t pb ··r.my undergradu• education was with an age~ that worked to find coml'!19f'Cial sexual 
exploitation~ Within this positiOn, I had the oppor:tunlty to work with adult' women who had been arrested on c~arges 
of prostltutlorfln a Sl!iJportlve group setttog. Through the.lltlle tlme;_l spent with each of these women, sometimes · 

· only meeting tileni.or'!ee or twice, I can safely Say that most Qf Jhes&'womeri were. survivors of domestic violence, · 
child sexual·abuse; lnteSt,:or rape. Th8te were 'many stories of rape by johris·or of b81ng·forced to perfonn certain 
sexual acts not agreed upon: · 

Thls'only leads· me to· Imagine the experiences ofyoung·glrfs.-.chlldren-sexually exPloited by older men. If"" law 
In ConnectiCut· states a child ~ilder the age of ~lxtEieo ·Js uriable to consent to sexual.a:tJvi1¥, how can we safely say 
that. by .arrestlng:yuuog girts, and. boys, for "prOstltuiinit themselves'· Is. them cammlttlng a clime and not a crime being 
committed against tfiem? How ca,n .we biame a chUd for h~ or her DWr! sexual abuse by a mu~ older man? 

According to Prostitution Research & Educatlon,-a nonprofit organization that.cooducts research on prostitution, 
pornography, arid trafficking, the average age of entry Into prostttuilon.ls 13 to 14 years. Yo~ng girls who are 
prostitUted by men oJten b8c0me Involved In the: Industry simply because of'a IS:k·of a safe place to call home. Most 
. come.froin d_rug ad~lcted parents, domestic. and sexual violence In the.home, antf.wotse. Some are even homelesS, 
getting llivotvecJ wiQl older men.who ~rce them Into prostitution. And' Interestingly •nol!gh, these young girls rarely, If 

_at aD;· keep the mon!!Y or other goods they receive In return forsex. Instead of punlshlng·these chl{dren, we must 
provide ·them with the setvlces Jhey desperately need to get out of·tha·commerclal sex Industry and lead ~. 
happy liVes. . 

Instead CJ! Jail; these_young children heed positive II:'VIronments to g~ up In tha,t demonstrate healthy relationships 
and bopst th!lr self ~teem. A child who grows. up belieVIng selling sex Is. the only way to_ live needs to be shown, 
aod encouraged. to beile\fE!, .that·~er oppOrtunities exist with the support of the frle~s and faintly they likely never 
had. 

. . 
.We mU$t begin ~_,change ~e language we use from wamen who •p10$fitute• ttJemselves to women and young 
girts and boys who are·~ by~ men who solicit th~. This bill· Is a step .In the rtght direction-towards 
treating yountf glrls.and boys who are $8XUally exploited as vlctJms· of a crime ·comml#ed against-them, a ci1me 
committed ·by men who oontlnue to _support and prpmote·the real problen;HI commercial sex Industry that degrades 

. women and children. Let us stop blan'l!ng the viCtim and address the real perpe•rs of sexqal expiQ•n while at 
the same time providing: the ne:cessarY supports for victims. I strongly urge you all to support revisions of S.B.153. 

Thank you all so much for you time •. I wou!d be happy to answer any-questions you may have . 
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Publi~ Hearing Re: S.B. 153-An Act Providing a Safe Harbor for Exploited Children 

Sub..-tted by Christina Taw-adros 

Februarr 23, 2.010 

Good afternoon Senator Musto, Representative Urban, and members of the Children's Committee. 

lam here today to testify on am S.B. 153: Ail Act Providing a Safe Harbor for Exploited Children. 

My name is Christina Tawadros· and I am currently a Gfaduate student at the.University Of Connecticut 
School Of Social Work. I am here to testify tO supp_grt S.B. 15~ to stop ~i'secuting victims of child 
sexual trafficking as crimimils and providing these young people with protection and.social services. 

I came out today to sjleak out about my·concem for the children ~n Connecticut. Children 1,mder the !lge 
of seventeen are presently criminalized as perpetrators ofprostitution instead of being treated as victims 
of sex trafficking when haviQg engaged in ·sexual actsJor money. Despite ·the fact that, under . 
Connecticut State Law~ children under the age of 16 cannot consenno. sex, young children are routinely 
charged and inc~rated for prostitution. Connecticut needs to stop treating exp~oited children like · 
criminals and provide them with services and safe houses, not jail cells. 

The way the law is currently·.\Vritten is blaming the victims who are sexually exploited by both traffickers 
and the adults buying the sex of minors. Chil~n get re-traumatized when being arrested and tried in 
court,.reducing their chances to have productive lives of opportunities when.~iQg given a criminal 
record. · · · · 

When many of us think ofsex traffi.cl.dng, we think of women and children being transported from place. 
to place, often from outside the country. All around the worl~. we bear of horrific stories. of children 
sold for sex such as in the case in rural villages of Cambodia, Thailand, Philippians and other parts of 
South.East Asia. And while we hear about these stories, we never think· to fathom that such heinous 
crimes could .happen right here in our. own .neighborhoods. Furthermore,. when it does happen (because it 
does) ~e punish the poor children that have been victims of this expioitation. I ask you, how does this 
malce serise? 

On the surface it may seem th,~t if a person is selling their body for sex they should be prosecuted. 
However, these children are f()I'Ced or coerced into sexual acts . .I am asking you to see the serious 
implications of such a law and how that re-traumatizes the young people that are thrown into jail. 

I am not a parent, but I am an older sister and aunt of young children. l plead to all parents and an yon~ 
who cares about the well-bei~g of the younger generation of the State of Connectic;ut. Child vic~ms of 
comm~rcial sexual exploitation deserve to be given a chance for a better life ~e from. abuse. I urge you 
to revis~ S B 15,3 to stop prosecuting victims of-child sex ~eking but rather recognize their 
vulnerability and provide them the n~cessary services that will build the children of Connecticut. . 

Thank you for your tim~ and would be happy .to try to answ_er any questions . 
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Connecticut Sexqal Assault Crisis Services, Inc. 

96 Pitkin Street· East Hartford, CT 06i08 ·Phone: 860-282-9881 ·Fax: 860-291"..;9335 • www.coimsacs.org 

Testimo .. y of Connecticut Sexual Assault Crisis ServiC4!S 
In Support of SB 153 AN ACT PROVIDING· SAFE HARBOR 

FOR EXPLOITED CIDLD~N 
Anna Doroghazi, Director of Public Policy ~d Communication 

Select Committee on Children Public 'Hearing, Tuesday, February 23, 2010 

Senator Musto, Representative Urban~ and honorable member,; ofthe Select Coinrnittee on 
Children, my mime is Anna Ooroghazi, and I am the Director of Public Policy and 
Communicatipn for Connecticut Sexual Assault Crisi~ Services, Inc (CONNSACS). 
CONN SACS is the statewide association of nine community~based rape crisis centers in 
Conneclicut .Our mission is to end sexual violence and ensure high quality~ comprehensive and 
culturally competent sexual assault victim services.: 

When children under the age of sev~nteen. are engaged in prostitution, it.is difficult to imagine 
that their participationdoes no.t involve coercion as defined In Section S3a- .192 of the 
Conilecticut General Statutes'. Coerced ~e~ _is rape, and victims of sexual violence should be 
protected, not prosecuted, under Connecticut law. SB 153 AN ACT PROVIDING SAFE 

·HARBOR FOR E:X:PLOITED CHILDREN provides this protection. 

Teen and child survivors of sexual violence ~ce myriad -barriers to disclosing their abuse, 
including fear for theit-ufety, fear of not being ·believed, and fear of being blamed for their 
victimiZation. They should not also have to fear prosecution ifthey·reach out for support and 
assistance. The propQsed S~e Harbor law would remove one ofthe many barriers that exist for 
chilclren who Want to leave ipt exploitive situation. Pres1,1ining. coercion In child prostitution cases 
removes blame ,from. ypung victims and places it ori thc;>se who ~ truly culpable - the pimps 
who .profit from the abuse ofminors and the johns who pay to hurt children .. 

A Bureau of.Justice Statistics Special Report found that between January 2007 and September 
2008, 31.8% ofall hw.nan trafficking cases in the United States involved child prostitution2

• 

Although it is possible, for ·any child' to become the victim: of sexual e_xploitation, certain 
populations are mQre. at risk to become involved· in prostitution. A 2002 University of 
Pennsylvania stUdy found that ~·among ruQaway and 'homeless youth, approximately 30% of 
shelter youth and 70% of street youth engaged in prostitution in-order to meet their· daily needs 

' ' 

1 §S3a-192(a) A person is guilty of coercion when he compels or induces another person to engage in conduct which such other person 
has a legal right to l!bs~n liom engaging in, or to abstain liom engaging in conduct in which such other person,has a legal right to 
engage., by means of instilling in such other person a Tear that, if the demand· is not complied with, the actor or another will: (I) Commit 
any criminal offense; or (2} accuse any Pc:rson of a criminal offense; or (3) exposnny secret ten_ciing tO subject any Jierson to hatred, 
contempt or ridicule, or to'impair any person's credit or business ~ute; or (4) take or withhold action as an officiiil, or cause an official 
to take or withhold action. · 
J United States. DepL of Justice. Bureau of Justice StatistiCs. Characteristics of Suspected Human Traffic:icing incidents, 2007-2007, 
Beck, Cohen, and K~ckelhahn. IS Jan 2009. Ac~d 20 Feb 10 < http://bjs,ojp.usdoj.gov/contentloublpdl7cshtj08.pdt> · ... 

. __ --.....-,. . 
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for food, shelter, ckugs: and the like."3 Whe.ri adults tak,e advantage of children who ·are 
homeless, hllll:gry' suffering from ~diction, or being trafficked, they are pr~ying upon 
vulnerability, and they alone are accountable for their actions: · · 
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Victims are never guilty of their victimiza:ti9n, ~d young victims of prostitution deserve the 
protections ~r would .be afforded to them under the proposed Safe Harbor legislation. 
C~mnecticut Sexual.Assau.It Crisis Services supports SB 153-A.N ACT PROVIDING SAFE 
HARBOR fOR EXPLOITED CHILDREN and encourages you to do the same. 

Thank you for giVing rp.c; the opport\J.nity to speak with you today . 

·l Estes and Weiner. "Th~ Com~nercial Exploitation of Children in the United States, Cilnada and Mexico" Exec11live Summary. 
Philadelphia: UniverSity of Penrisylvi!Jiia, 2002. 
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SB 153 AN ACT PROVIDING SAFE HARBOR FOR EXPLOITED CHILDREN 
Select Coitliilittee on Children, February 23, 2010 . 

Good afternoon, my naine. is April Raczka and I am the Director of Sexual Assault Crisis 
S~rvices of the Hartford apd New Britain region. My organization provides free and 
confidel)tial sexual assault counseling and advocacy to residents in a 43-town region 
which includes all of Hartford Coi.mty plus the town ofPlymouth and part_ of Tolland 
CoUilty. 

I am also a family therapist, arid in both roles I have a combined experience of over ten 
years experie~ce working With children who have been victimized and sexually 
exploited. Our agency has worked with several cases involving adults and children who 
have b~en (orc~d "into· prostitution. This is not often considered an op,ion by children (or 
adults), and the reality is thai children do no' cl;10ose to be abused. A vast majority of 
those involve.d in trafflcking are currently being sexually abused at the hands of those, 
who have _promised them refuge. Ir"the ~buse is not current they have been victims in the 
past. Many times victims have known no other life·but that with which sex without true 
consent is considered normal. They have not had role models or anyone to protect them, 
and the syste'!ls that are meant to protect them have failed them. 

I know this because I have worked personally with dozens of children and young women 
who have reported directly to me that they were sexually exploited in order to create 
incom~ for thefr family. In.mally_instances, those children are exploited by those who 
were also sexually assaulting them at home on a daily basis. As Director of the 
Hartford/New Britain regional Sex1JB}_Assault Crisis Services, my staff have reported 
several cases to me~ some quite recently, in which adolescen' males and females were 
exploited by their ·parents or foster p_arents. 

I write this in effort to ask that these children ~ provided with the most comprehensive 
care and -~atment rather than punishment. I ask that we as advo~ates for children, 
counselors and· human beings can recognize this is not something a .child or adolescent 
want~ for ~emselves. They iieed help, desperately. For this reason, I ask that you support 
SB 153 AN ACT PROVIDING SAFE HARBOR FOR EXPLOITED CHILDREN. 
Rather than punish young victims of sexual exploitation, it is 01,11" job as adults, advocates, 
human beings to protect the~ anq tp get- them the treatment they need to thrive and live 
"healthier lives. 

Thank you. 

April Raczka MS:MFT,.Director of Sexual Assault Crisis Services, YWCA New Britain 
Phone: (86Q) 225-4681, ext. 211 



e·· 

. i 
I 

000140 

~-~-21!10 ~~,+ 
Testimony to the Select Committee-on Children 

Public .Heari~g .Re: S~B."153-An Act Providing a Safe. Harbor tor Exploited Children 

Sub..-.ltted by Daniela Giordano 

Good aft:e~n Senator MuSto, Represen~tive .Urban, members of the Qlildren's Committee. I partf~larly 

would like to note that".~~i:or Ed Meyer Is the senator of my hometown of Branford. 

My name Is Daniela Glordano.and I am aJn:ent:Jy a. Graduate student at the University of Connecticut 

School of Social Wo~ ~jortng In policy practice. lam here to testify to suPPQ!'.t S.B. 153 with revisions 

to ~P persecuting victims of chUd sexual exploitation as almlnals and connecting these young people to 

.crucial services. 

My".C:oncern Is for chlldrer:' l,ll Coonecticut·u~er the age of seventeen who, at this point In time," enter the . 
Juvenile Justice syStem as· perpetrators of prostitution Instead of being considered victims of ~ trafficking 

wtien h~ving engaged Jn,sexual ads for money. 

This prad:lce seems at Odds with Connecticut state law that asserts that until a person reaches age sixteen 

she or he is ~lly incapable of consenting to sex with someone over the age of eighteen, which most 

buyers of commercial sex are. 

The Way the law Is aJrrently"wrttten Is blaming the victims who are sexually eq,Joited by both trafftckers 

and the adultS buying sex with minol'$. Ollldren get re-traumatlzed. when being arrested and b1ed In court, 

redudng their chances to have productive IJveS of opportunities when being given a criminal record. 

80-90% of child trafflddng vfdims have 'been sexually abused; 

..S.B. 153 is a good_ start to look at h9W we approach and treat victlrns .of child sexual exploitation. It would 

eliminate the perception and the votce that claims that minors can consent to commer:dal sexual acts and 

therefore are at fault for being ·exploited In this way. The exploitation usually Is perpetrated by much older 

men who may pose as boyfriends, c:are takers or protectors, and later add to these roles isolation from 

family and friends, threatS of and acts of violence to continue to c:oercityoung people to engage In 
1 . 
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_p~on.- Accortllng to the Polaris Project Actio~ Center, '!!·leading n~n-protit organization combating 

. human trafficking~ a bill similar to _5.8; 153 was pa~ In New .Yo~ in 2008. 

0 "!' • • 

Revising S.B. 153 fo stop the prosecution of young people und~r the.age of seventeen i" the first place 

· · ·. . . WO\Jid be more In line with what Sate Harbor bills are ln~ded to accomplish.' The· new Safe Harbor bill · 

could then pave the way for.idEmtifylng these victims of~ ~eking whJc:h would Include the training of 

members of lavv enforCement lh being able to do just that VIctims of human ·trarrK:klng could then be 

. ' .... :..·. 

. I 

connected to existlng·audal services Including counseling~ .medlc;ai care~ ~nd other sodal servl~ like safe . . . - . . . . 
., • .. . • ' .. • 0.. . 

. · IJouslng needed to reclaim their young' JiveS. Their chances-of being productive citizens of O!Jr state would 
0 0 • 

be abundantly In~. 
0 : 

I urge you to ~lse S.B. 153 to stop prosect.itlng victims of child sex.' trafficking· as almlnciJS and 

. ~nnecting t,h_em·to services; knowing that you aie standing up fof the children of Connecticut a_nd offering 
• 0 • • • o, 0 

them a:wav to regal~! their. strength, dign~ and the hope tor a better future where they tiave 'real choices 

aboUt their lives that are_ not determined by: someone else's agenda .but their own actions • 

. . I.appredate the·opporb,lntty to-share my views wltti you !Jnd wo~ld be J:lappy to try to answer any 
'o • . • • . ... • 

questions. 

Respect(ully submitted,· Daniela Giordano 
., 
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.i\drienae Filmr H'oucl,.d:wir 
Cecilia]. Woods, Vi2Clarr 
DcDise Boclosevii:b, s· 
Elizabech DcmobUe, ~ 
EXEamvE DIRECfOit 
Teresa C. Yc~un&er . 

Connecllcut Ge""l!' ~emll,z----..,~-

.lJ.PCSW 
Pennaneilt Commission on the Status of Women 

. JlniSiaiii:S~IINCe lar__,"lequaDry 

Testimony of 
. Michelle Noehren 

LegislatiVe Liaison & Events Cooldinator· 
'{he Pennanent Coriunission on the Status of Women 

Befon: the 
· Select Committee. on Chilcln:n 

~· . Tuesday, Febmaiy 23,2010 

In Support of: S:B. 153, AA Pm~ding a S!ife ~amor fur Exploi~d.QUldn:il 
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COMMISSIONERS 
YVOIIIIe R.· Davis 
Bad!UaM . 
Curie~ 
Kristin LaFleur 
Tlll)'a Meek 
Toni Moran 
Melaaie O'Brien 
Jean L Bafanl 
~leueSbay 
.a..lrR. Sl:me 
SlisaD Q Suny 
Pmicia E.M Whia:ombe . 

HONORARY MEMBERS 
Coimie Dii:e 
Pmicia T;Headel 
Pmicia Russo 

Senator Musto, Representative Ulban and members of the.committee, ~you for this oppo~to. provide 
teStimony.in suppott of S.B. 153, AA J,>roviding a Safe Harbor for Exploited Oilldren. 

PCSW chairs _and convenes.~-TraffiCking in Pe~ons Counc~ which was originally established in 2004 to study 
the issue of human uaff1eking and make recommendations to the Legislature. The "Legislature enacted seve!al 
Council recommendatiOns into Jaw, and as a result Connecticut has criminal and civil penalties for the crime of 
traffJClang. · · 

Despite the implementation of these laws, trafficked children are not fully protected from criminal penalties. 
, Gmentlyaltho~ c~n ~r the ~e of 16 cannot COJJSentto sex, they can be prose~d for prostitution. 

Additionally, the "Iaise· the ag~·legisla:tion helps children from being prosecuted as adults; h9wever it does not . 
prevent. them from being prosecuted as juvenile delinquents. · 

S.B. 153 will addless this problem by establishing a pre~_umption that a p~rson, who ·is under the age of 17 and 
being prosecuted for-prostitution, is a victim of ~ickiQg. This bill would acknowledge that commercially" 
sexually exploited and uafficked children are better served in CQIIinnlnity counseliilg and shelter program rather 
than juvenile justice lock-up facilities. · 

nus bill compliments the intent· of the anti-trafficking statutes by protecting, rather than punishing, victims of 
traffiCking. We apPreciate y6ur at!l=ntion ~ this matter; · 

. . 

18-20 Trinity St, Hartford, CT 06106 • phone: $60/240-8300 • f~ 860/240-8314 • em•il: pcsw@cga.ct.gov • web:.www.cga.ct.gov/pcsw 



-----1--
000143 

Dear Members of The Select Committee on Children: . . - . . -

I am an 18-year old girl who suppo$ 5.8.153 "An Act Providing a·Safe Harbor 

fo~ Exploited Children." I was one of those kids: .scared ·and lost with np control-of my 

life. I use to ru11 away frOm home with no place to go. I was. looking for someone to love 
. . 

me, I became involved in ·prostitu~ion. I didn't know what I was getting. myself into. I have 

been raped and beaten many times and I still have these memories that will be with me 

for the rest of my life·. I was 14 years old; I did.not try to tell anyone because I was 

sea reef: scared what they would do to me but also what the government thought of me. I 

never got arre~ted but I know many people that have been. It was hard to see girls I 

knew go to jail for something they had no control-over. People think prostitution is 

control over your body but r~ally, it is much mo~e than that. I had people threaten me 
. . . 

and force m~ to do tt:Jings I did not want to do. I felt. like if I did not do what they wanted 
. . 

~e to do I would be seriously injured. I wa~ lucky th~t I got help and had the courage to 

stand up for myself. It took many therapy sessions and treatment to move forward in my 

life. I ju~t wish ttlat ever-Yone that goes through this can get the support that that they 

need rather: than a jail sentence. 

Thank you from your time 

D.C . 

• 
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. DIVISION OF PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICES 
DEBORAH Del PRETE SULLIVAN 
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OFFICE OF CHIEF PUBLIC DEFENDER 
30 TRINITY STREET • 4111 Floor 

HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06 i06 
(860) 509-6405 Telephone · 

. EXECUTIVEASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
deborah.d.sullivan@jud.ct.gov 

(860) 509-6495 Fax . 

TestiJnony of Deborah Del Prete Sul.ivan, . 
Legal CoU1lse)/Executive Assistant Public Defender 

Office of Chief Publlc Defender· 

Select· Coll'Uil~ttee on Children-February 23, 201().;Publ~c .Hearing 

.Raised Bill No. 153. An Act Providing a Safe Harbor for Exploited Children 

The Office of Chief Public Defender supports passage of Raised Bill No. 153, An Act 
Providing a Safe Harbor for .Exploited Children. Current law provide$ ~t any person charged 
-with prostitution has an affirmative defense thafhe/ she was "co~ed" to commit the 
offense. However, in order for a person to ~sert the affirmative defense, the ,person must 
proceed to trial and assert it there. 

· This proposed 'legislation creates ·a "presumption" that~ person was coerced to 
prostitute the~lves·if the person so charged was under the age .ofl7 years. Current law 
provides that a person un~er the age of 17 is a juvenile. Although the legislation eliminates 
the need to assert an a££irmative defense at trial for persons und_er 'the age of 17, a juvenile 
can still be arrested. As· a result, notwithstanding ~e pr~sumption; this legislation wil,l not 
change the fact that the juvenile will be arrested and possi}:)ly be detained. 

Once arrested and.proceeding·in the juvenile justice:system, the legislation does not 
indicate whether, the prostitution charge: against the juvenil~ :will ultimately be dismissed if 
the presumption is not overcome. 

This office would request tha~ if· such a presUI]lption is legislated, that no juvenile be 
arrested .. In addition, this office ~owd also request that the presumption be extended ~o a 
person who is 17 years. of age. Currently, a 17 year old is presumed to be~ Youthful Offender 
and not art adult if charged With prostitution. This office requests consideration ·of these. 
~~ues and clarffication as. the bill moves towards passage and offers its· assistance in gaining 
passage. of this .legislation. Thank you for raising this bill for a public hearing. 
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StolP Vlelldl Ad"lioc:olr. 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
OFFiCE OF VJCTIM ADVOCATE 

505 HUDSON. STREET, HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06'1.06 

Testimony of Michelle Cruz, Esq., State Victim Advocate 
Select Committee on ChDdren 
·Tuesday, February 23, 2010 
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Good afternoon Senator Mu.sto, Representative Urban and distinguished members of the 
·select Collllili.ttee on Children. For the record, my name is.Michelle C~ and rain the Victim. 
Advocate for the; State of Connecticut. Thank you for the opportunity .to submit testimony in 
.SUPPORT of: 

Raised Senaie· Bill No. 153, AIIAcl".f?roviding a Safe Harbor for Exploited 
a,;/d;·en . · . 

Conliecticut is uniqpely plac;ed as it is a throughway betWeen New York and Boston and 
has the potential to become a breedin,g ground for htuna11 traffickers. As individual states adopt, 
new legislation to. combat human trafficking, Connecticut must remain vigilant so that we not 
only address the human trafficking problem in our state,. but also deter human traffickers, from 
moving ·into our state to begin with. · 

. The majority of victims in hUinan trafficking cases are woman and young girls. It is 
·impo1tant to first.identify victims as victims~ -and furth.Cr; work closely with trafficking victims­
many of whom don't speak English-to procure their help· in pro.secuting their captors. 
Additionally, there must be support and services·.~n.place t.o ensure that trafficking ~ictims are. 
able to cope with the h~rrors they've been through and.get back on .theil' feet. .. 

Raised Senate. Bill No. 153 is a r~asonable step to a growing national problem. 
Tho~ ·mdividi.l~ls who &J1: iden.tified as victims, through the investigation, should be treated as 
victims and not as defendants. To subject a trafficking victilnto an arrest and prosec~tion only 
·compounds the h11m and trauma .experienced·by the·victim. We believe through investigation 
law enforcement should be able .to identify those individuals who are truly trafficking·victims 
and not seek proseeution. However, the proposed affirmative defense should be available for 
those individuals who were not identified initially through the Initial investigation as trafficking 
victims, as is ofl.en the case. 

Thank you for consideration ·of my testimony. I urge the committee to support the 
proposal. 

Very Sincerely~ 

~>d.&g 
Michelle Cruz, Esq . 
. State Victim,Advocate 

Phone: (860) 550-6632. ($88) 771-~ 126 Fax: (860j 566-3542 
An A./ilrmattloe Ac:tim11Eq11al OpJHH"Itmiry Emp}o;l'er 

• 
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In 2001, a family member of mine, who was fifteen. .at the time, was recruited into prostitution. 
A young teenage· girl that left ·us as an innocent child came back to us with a damaged soul. My family 
andi had never heard ofcofT)mercial sexual e.xp,oitation. The thought. of prostitution, never crossed· 
our minds as it had·nev~r touched our lives. We learned _very quickly, and it was heart· wrenching. 

A caring detective recognize,d he,r face from ~ missing poster while ~he was being. processed 
for-solicitation for prostitution and-quickly contacted us. We we.~' by her s(de within hours. When .she 
came out of the f'OOI"IJ to greet us, I was overwhelmed at the change· that I saw in her. I had seen her 
several weeks prior from the date that she went missing and I couldn't believe my eyes. She was 
gone for 33 days and she. had aged, she looked different, as if something _was not there, something 
was missing. 

lleamed quickly about prostitution and what the victimization was that these women and girls 
had to endure; however this did not" prepare us in any way for .what the experien~ would be in 
assisting her; Services were not avallabie to her that: would assist her in any way of getting the· help 
she so despe.rately'needed. 

She left us as an innocent child and was retu17Jed to us with an extremely damaged mind, 
bO(Jy, and spirit. We. are a white middle-class family and we never imagined this could happen to us. 

Her battle to get Of!t of this life continued for 8 more years. 

Well that was many years ago and I t,ave been educated. quite a bit more since then. The 
trauma, pain, hurt and degradation she suffered compelled_ me to find a way to educate communities 
about what our ch_ildren are up against and how we can· protecUhem. Us, the adults, the caregivers •. 
have to be e_mpowered with the knowledge· of what:to look for in our children, how to ·react and what 
steps to take if your child has been a victim. It is imperative to listen ,and be. non~judgmentai towards 
the c_hild if this occurs. These c;hildren need specialized services available to them that must in"clude 
mental health. and trauma t!lerapy. If gone un.treated tl:ley be_come the women we have served over 
the past nine years in Hartford ·and Waterbury Community Court 

The Paul & Lisa Program believes that if emotional, physical and mental health problems are 
. treatec:l_properly,. this populatipn has a real chance .to redirect their lives and see themselves. as 
valu~ble human beings. rather than wort!:11ess objects. 

Se_xual. and other physical violence is the normative e~perience for women who engage in 
prostitution. This has been clinically noted, and reported by others .. "Violence from·customers.is 
aimed I"!Ot only at pu·nishment and control of women, but at ~stablishing their worthlessness and 
invisibility" .(Dwork_in. 1997:_Patterson, 1982;. "The hatred and contempt is ultimately internalized by 
these women resulting in extremely long-lasting self-hatred and lack of:se,f-r~specf' (Barry, 1995: 
Dworkin, 1997: Hunter, 1994; MacKinnon. 1993 ·Many profe~siOOti!IIS who work with this population 
have not been-trained to. see that those who prostitute an~ marginalized human beings· with a lack of 
resources, or to. recognlze·-and .. assess'the titiique factors· that demand these wornen to receive. · 
und~rstanding·and care specialized to fit their overall pl)ysical, emotional an~ mental-health needs. 

I urge the Select Committee on Children to bring this bill to vote with the General AsSembly. I 
highly recommend that the bill identifies these children as victims and requires these much needed 
comprehensive services be a~ailable for_ these children. · 

Shaleen. Silva 
Exec_utive Director 
The Paul & Lisa Prog_ram Inc. 
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CONNECTICUT 

VOICES-
FoRcHILDREN 

Testimony Re~-An Act'Providing a Safe Harbor for ExPloited Children­
Can Carson; Annemarie Hillman, and Alexandra Dufresne, J.D. 

Select Committee on ·chil~~ 
February 23, 2010 

Dear Senator Musto, Representative Urban, and distinguished Members of the Select Committee on 
Children: : 

We are testifying today .on behalf C?f Connecticut Voices· for Children,.a research-based· public 
education an,d advo~cy organization that works statewide to promote the well-being of 
C9imecticut's children, youth, and families. 

Connecticut Voice.s for Children supports-S.B. 153. with revisions as attached. 

I. Child prostitution. occms in Coonectic;ut. 
Each ·yelir, an· estimate~ 100,000 to 300,000 adolescents are· ~volved in prostitution in the United 
States.1.These children usually enter into prostitution, on av~ sometime between the ages of 
twelve and thirteen years· old, and consequently enter a wodd._of physical, .sexual, eD)otioilal, and 
mental degradat:lon,2 These c:;hiJ.dren are not just found in N~ Yolk Cit}r ·or Boston,_ but exist in 
Connecticut as \yell. In January 2009, a multi-state tglffickiilg png aploiti.ng as· many as. twenty 
women, including -minors, was discovered and disbanded thrOugh the efforts of the· Bridgeport,. 
Milford, as:t9 Sttitford Police Departments, as well as the FBI and Connecticut State Police.3 Since 
Apri12008, twenty-five Connecticut youth have }Jeen identified ~ victims of sex trafficking by the 
Department of Children. and Families (DGF).· Further information about the number of children 
involved iil prostitution, and.sex trafficking is limited, due to a lack of reporting requirements on this 
issue. 

In general, after interviewing several assistant public defenders, child welfare staff, and service 
providers thro}lghout the state of Connecticut, it seems that Connecticut law enforcement.and 
·government officials de;» tend to tteat these children as victims rather than as criminals. We have 
found minimal ~ence to sl,iggest that prostituted Children are often found guilty of prostitution or 
given harsh sentences. However, although rare, Conn~cticut law_ does allow child-victims of 
comm~ sexual ~loitation to be prosecuted for the crime of prostitution. 

II •. Coonecticu~ Voices. for. Children supports the in~lit of.S.B. 15.3; we believe children 
engaged in prostitution are victims of sexual eXploitation and not criminals on account of 

... their_ prostitution •. The. majority_ of U.S. children_ involved _in pr~stitutioli.are n1naways and are past 

1 Shelby SchWartz, "Harboring Coilcems: The Problematic Conceptual Reorientation of Juvenile Prostitution 
Adj)Uii.qation m New Y:ork;" Collllllbfa ]ollntl.ll oJGtnt/lrand I- (2008}, 2. . . 

2 Kate"Brittle, "Child Abuse by Another Name: Why the Child Welfare System is the Best Mechaoism in Place to 

Address the Problem ·of J11Venile Prostitliti~n," Hofrtm r..-. Rni1111 (2008}, 2.· 
3 US Department ofJustice/~ider of Expansive Multi-State Sex-T~f6ckingRing Sentenced," D,.g W11k Oanwu:y 9, 
.. 2009). . 
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victims of sexual abuse, physical abuse, neglect, and/ or other forms of trauma.4 These youth are 
manipulated by adults to .c;ngage in sexual acts in return for a fee and are coerced into continued 
prostitution by.sophistica~d psychological, emotional, and physical means.5 As these children are 
Victims of sexual and trafficking crimes, and due to their age would also be eligible for treatment 
under Connecticut's .child welfare system, 6 Connecticut Voices for Children believes that these 
children should b~ treated as victims, rather than criminals. Thus, we support the ·intent of SB 153, 
which aims to ~e it more difficult fo~:.minors to be prosecuted for this crime and also hopes to 
connect. these children With services. Yet, we would prefer that an altemative version of the bill be 
passed (see attached), which we believe better prevents children from being prosecuted for 
prostitution and more closely connects these vulnerable children to needed mental and physical 
health services. 

1.1. S.B. 153, as Written, states that youth •s 16 and under who are being prosecuted on 
prostitution charges wiD be presumed to have. been coerced into prostitution. The child will 

. be presumed to be a victim of traffiCking of persons: In existing statutes, a child can use the fact that 
they were coerced as an affirmative defense, i.e., the burden of proof lies on the child and her 
attorneys to prove that she was coerced. 7 S.B. 153 simply changes the law so that the prmmiplion is 
that she was coerced, and the opposing party has the burden of proving that the child was not 
coerced. · 

IV. While S.B. 153 attempts to protect exploited youth &om adjudication, the bill is 
insufticieilt to truly protect and serve these vulnerable children. Under s:B. 153, a child may 
legally still be arrested, detained pre-trial, charged, and prosecuted for prostitution. Arresting a child 
for prostitution and possibly detaining her is traumatic for the child and conveys that she is 
somehow "bad" and "criniinal." It is also possible for the presumption to be reb~tted and a child 
.adjudicated delinquent for prostitution. While children accused of prostitution would be presumed 
to be vict:;ims of trafficking under S.B. 153, the bill does not set forth how these children would 
receive services for trafficking victims and does not prohibit further prosecution. 

V. While Connecticut: laws do allow children to be prosecuted for prostitution, in practice 
'prostituted youth ~ most often diverted &om the court system and are .often referred to or 
provided with needed social services. Amending S.B. 153 as attached would bring 
Connecticut statutes in line with Connecticut's already progressive approach on-the-ground 
to serving these youth. C~endy, DCF and local police departments divert and serve prostituted 
children. On January 13,.2010, DCF adopted a protocol to identifr and serve child victims of 

·4 Urbina, Ian. For~ on th1 Stmt; Sa B'!JS SllrVitml. New York Times, Oct. 27, 2009. Section A, pg. 1. 
s Kate Battle; "Child Abuse by Anothe"r'Name: Why the Child Welfare System is the ·Best Mechanism in Place 'to 

Address the Problem of Juvenile Prostitution," HofstrrJ Llw 'RmiJp (2008), 6, 7. 
6 Connecticut.Geneial Statutes Sec. 17a-93. Available at: hnp:!tc;p.ct,'goy/20Q9/pub/chap319a.htm 
·'Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 53a-82. Reads: "(a) A: peison is guilty of prosti,tution when such penon engages or 

agrees or offers to engage in sexual condUct with another penon in retum for a fee. (b) In any prosecution for an 
offense under this sec~on. it shall be an affumative defense that the actor W.s coerced into committing such offense 
by another penon in violation of section 53a-192a. (c) Prostitution i~ a class A misd~eanor." Available at: 
http://c;ga.etgoy/2Q09/pub/c;hap952.bqn. 
Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 53a-192a. Available at: bnp://cga,c;t.gov/2009/pub/chap952.htm. 
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trafficking.8 Unoeuhe protocol, Ia~ enforcement officials suspecting that a child is a victim of 
commercial sexual exploitation inform DCF. A DCF soCial-. worker and law enforcement officers 
collaborate to investigate the situation, and the child is evaluated at a local hospital. DCF makes a 
determination as to the;most appropriate. next steps; the child's placement needs, and the child's 
sen;.ce needs. In other cases, some local police departments have bee~ reported to direcdy refer 
children ·tc? -Services. 

VI. In order to codify Coliilecticut's existing practices _and to address the current limitatio~;~& 
of S B. W;, we propose three revisions to the bill. (See proposed revision attached.) 

Firstly, we recoJ:pmend. that tl,ie bin directly state that no child shan be prosecuted for a 
prostitution offense under Connecticut's penal code. This will ensure that child sex tra~ficking 
victims will not endure the further ttaJ.].D12,_and stigmilt:i.Zation of attest for prostitution and possible 
deten,tion. · 

Secondly, we believe that the wording of the bin should more directly link child sex 
trafficking Victims to the servicei and protections provided to victims of human trafficking, 
rather than juit.identifying these children as victims of human trafficking. Children who have 
been commercially sexu;ill.y exploited are better served by meeting the·vari.ous needs of victims of 
t:J;afficking: mental·health services, l!afe housing, medical care, and others.9 Our version of the bill 
direcdy states that child sex: trafficking victims should rece,i.ve the same servic~ and protections 
awarded to trafficking victims. 

Thirdly, we would like. to see the benefits of the law applied to an minors under the age of 
eighteen, instead of seventeen as proposed in SB :153. ·we believe that including all prostituted 
children under the age o£-eighteen would more closely bring this bill into line with other Connecticut 
laws. A seventeen-year,..old Connecticut youth cannot vote; serie on a jury, get a marriage lieense on 
his or her own, or ent~ a casino. Mo~ovei:, the Department of Chil;dren and Families, which would 
be "the likely social·service·provider for child victims .of sex trafficking. states th!!-t youth can receive 
seryices from its agency until age eighteen.10 As of 2012, Connecticut's Raise the Age law will also 
acknowledge that children _under the age of eighteen should be· treated as juveniles.11 Amending this 
l:>ill to apply to all commercially sexually exploited children under· the age Qf eighteen would be more · 
consistent with Connecticut's current laws. 

Based on our research, the actions· of Connecticut's police force, c4lld W"iliate agency, and justice 
system have shown Connecticut to be a leader in the tr~tment of commercially sexually.exploited 
-children as victims, n_ot criminals. By co~g Connecticu(s historical non-prosecution of child sex 
trafficking victims and acb.ve. proviSion of services to these children, we hope to ensure that child 

1 Connecticut Department of Children and Families. InklJu 1111d liWiiligfili111 &rpoiUI to H11111a11 Trrzjjid:Uig of Chi~"· Policy 
31"-10-6,1. Available online at:,hnp;//www.ct,gov/dcf/c:wp/yiCw.a&p?a=2639&Q-45392Q. 

9 Kate Brittle, "Child Abuse by' Another Name: Why ~e ~ Welfiire System is the Best Mechanism in Place to 
Address the Problem ofju~ Prostitution,'~ Hofstra Lm! Rniall (2008),11. 

to Connectic;ut Genenl-Statutes Section 17a-93. Available at: btqr//c;ga.ct.gov/2009/publchap319a.htm 
11 Connecticut Genenl StatUtes Section 46b-120. Available at: hrtp;//c;ga.c;tl0v/2009/pub/c;hap815t,btm -.Sec;46b­

.12l1.hliD~ 
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~cti.ms of comm~ sexual exploitation throughoqt the state, :OQw and in the future, will have the 
same beneficial access to·socialservices:tather than punishment. · 

Accordingly, Co~ecticut Voices f~r C~dren s~pp.ortS· the proposed bill, S.B .. 153, with the 
reservation that it be amended·~~ iil the attached revision. 



A CONNECTICUT 
-•--vOIC·E·S 

FOR CHILDREN 

Deletions are in bracl¢ts. 
Additions are underlined. 

AN ACT.PROVIDING ~SAFE HARBOR FOR E){l>LQITED CHilDREN. 
Be it enacted by the Senate ~d House of Representatives in General Assembly_ colivene¢ 
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Section ·1. Section 53a-82 of the general statutes is repealed ancl.-the followirig is substituted in lieu 
thereof (Effecti;ve October 1, 201 0): 

(a) A person is guilty of prostitution when such person engages or !lgtees or offers to engage in 
sexual conduct with another person in retU:m for a fee. 

(b) In any prosecution for an offense under this section, it shall be an affirmative defense that the 
actor was co~ed into committing such offense by another person in violation of section 53a-192a .. 

[(c) In any prosecution <;Jf a person under the age of seventeen .for an o((ense under this section, · 
there shall be a presumption that the actor wal! ·coerced into committing such offense by another 
person in·violatio~ of sect:i.c;n 53a-192a.] 

(c) No person under ~e age of eighteen shall be prosecuted for an offense under this section. 

(d) AnJ. person-under the age of eighteen who eQg'llges or agtees or offers to egpge in sexual 
conduct witJ:l ailother pers~n in return for a: fee shall be eligible for all protections and services 
provided to victims of human· trafficking. :"' 

[(d)]~ Prostitution is a c:Jas~ A,misdemeanor. 

33 Whitney Avenue • New Haven, Cf 06510 • Phone 203-498-4240 • Fax 203-498-4242 
53 Oak Street, Suite 15 • Hartford, cr 06106 • Phone 860-548-1661 • Fa.'l: 860-~48-1783 
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From: cpamiaws~i@comcast.net -
.To: "Elizabeth giann~ro-s" <Eiizabeth.gia·nnaros@cga.ct.gov> 
Sent: Monday,february22, 2010 3:43:52 PM GMT -05:00 US/Canada Eastern 
Subject: Testimony on human trafficking 

Dear Rep. Diane Urban, . _ __ 
·I am _responding to yp~r request 'or-testimony on the exploitation of children 
through human traffickin-g ·portals. · 
I am a registered nurse for over .35 years and a trained cultural djverslty trainer . 

. My formal training ha$ been with the _National Multic4ltural Institute in­
Washington, DC. NMCI was founded in 1983 and ha_s responded to the nation'.s 
needs for services, knowledge and skills in the field of multiculturalism. They 
work with service providers, advocates, and l~;~w enforcement personnel to 
eliminate ,human trafficking in US and worldwide. They have developed a web 
portal to supply 'information on human trafficking· issues which _covel'S c~;~ses all 
over the US ~nd ... globally. 
WW'!N .huniantraffickindsearch. net 

As an instructor at a school of nursing part of the program is devoted to cultl,lral 
awareness and the abiliW to recognize human trafficking victims. Nurses can first 
respond to recognize this situation. 
lhe_ US govemm·en~ in 2008 coordinate~ efforts which involved several federal 
agencies and approximately $23 million in FY 2008for domestic programs to 
boost anti-traffi~king law enforcement efforts to identify· and protect.'Viticms of 

·trafficking and raise awareness (US State. Dept. Trafficking in Person Report, 
June 2009). · 

http://qvnet.com/humantraffickinq/USA.htm 

Why as a~ S~te_ would we not want to_ ackJ:!owledge that the issue exists? How 
can we continue to pride ourselves as a "free nation" if we do hot ·want laws in 
place- to prohibit mod~m day slavery? The nursing_ profes~ion has always been 
an advocate for ·public health. We have panicked about. th~ swine flu. Why would 
we not re~pond to ·individuals/children being put in these situations against their 
will? 

Sincerely, 

Charlotte Pamiaws~. MSN, CNE 
Nursing Instructor _ 
Briageport Hospital School of Nursing 
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My name is Raymond Bechard, I'm the author of the book, Unspeakable: The Hidden Truth 
Behind The World;s Fastest Growirig Crime, which is an expOSe oflinderage prostitQ.tion an,d 
child tra:fficki.ilg, I ·also served as a member of the Cpnnecticut Legislature's Domestic Violence 
in :Immigrant Communities Task Force. 

In my work aS a human rights advocate, .~p~g in, the fight against unde:r:age 
prostitution and hUII1.ap. ~afficking, I have come to re~e there is an urgent need to 
aggressiV.~ly address. the iSsue of the Commerciai Sexual Exploitation of Children, or 
CSEC, here in'Connecticut. 

To Qarify, the US Department ofJustice defines CSEC as "Crimes of a sexual nature 
co~tted against youthful victims (Younger t:h8n 18· years .old) -prlinarily or enfuely 
for financial or economic reasons. These crimes inclu:de~·for example, trafficking for 
sexual purposes, prostitution, ~ tourism, mail-order-bride trade and early marriage, 
pornography, stripping and sexual perfol'Ill8Itces." 

For most~ it is easy· to believe that CSEC ~are not pi"eValent or widespread 
domes~cally; Howeyet; according to the FBI, the average age oUemales entering 
prostitUtion· m the United States is 13, and for males it ~y be even .younger. The 
number of CSEC vid;ims, especially here in COJ1Ded:itut; is extremely difficult to 
c~culate' because it is a hidden crime - often not recogrrlzed by criminal justice. 

However, those who·work closely with these vi~ understand the ~plosion of CSEC 
crimes taking,place in our,soctety: ~e of these dedic~ted people is Kelley O'Connell, 
Sergeant. Detecf;iye with the Boston,.Police Department's H~ Trafficldng.Force. 
~ecently, Deteqi:ve O'Cpnnell s~ed the expansion of CSEc crlmes by stating, 
"The Girl is the Ne-W Dnlg." · · 

"The girl is the new Drug!' What she.is saying, is that for .many in the criminal reahn, it 
is far more profitable and far less dangerous to deal in prostitution ~ selling human 
beiitgs - than it is to sell drugs. · 

this is true for several reasqns. And these reas'?flS.also explain the explosion in CSEC 
crimes across America and here in Connecticut. · 

Reason#1 
Lesser threat of Prosecution. Unlike the investigatory and prosecutorial machines that 
have been long established to fight agamst drug crimes, .there ·is. very little motivation or 
institutional awareness for those m the criminal justice system to investigate and 
prosecute ~C, human trafficking, or prostitution crimes . 
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Reason#2 
Reduced suspicion. Having. possession of a large stash of .drugs is itself a serious crime. 
Having two fifteen year ole! girls with you, iS nqt. In other words, it is very easy to 
move the "product'' being sold without being caught. · 

Reason#3 · 
There is no product to buy~ Unlike drugs, which must be resupplied and purchased 

. every time a criminal dealer makes-a sale, young girls can be said 10, 15, 20 times a day 
- at a 100 percent profit each time. · 

Reason#4 
Prostitu,tion is becoxning more 'mainstrealn' ·in our SQciety. It is seen more often as a 
lifestyle· choice or~victimless crime. This perception-is often reinforced with terms like 
"High End ~ Girl," or "~imp My .Ride." ThiS gradWII rem,oval of prostitutiorr s taboos 
have made it m~ acceptable for younger and younger girls to be rec:ryited into this 
abuse .. ,And this is an important distinction to make. Un4erage prostitutiOn is 
p~ophilia. It is a:sex crime. Simply because 'there is;money changing hands does not 
make it "ju$t prostitution." Paid pedophilia is just as wr9ng, just a5 abhorrent, and 
should be just as illegal, as any ~sex crime against a child. 

There are many other reasons for the increasing numbet of.CSEC crimes, but the last I 
would ~e to site is Craigslist and the Online Availability of victims. Gone are the days 
when.most vi~ are'made to walk the streets, w~ting_for cars to pull up on the 
comer. While this still· occurs every night in towns across Connecticut, the vast majority 
of prostitution. here is occurring online. The intelnet: has further ·s~d this form of 
mCxiem day slaveey by making it possible to'buy and sell young victims with total 
anonymity. Perpetrators use CtaigsUst and their cdl p~es to have a victim delivered . 
to their home or h(;tel room wit;hin minutes. Today, finding a young person to perform 
sex.for money is easier than ordering a pizza. · · 

'fll:e combination-of these factors has created a perfect storin against CSEC victin,ls in 
Connecticut 

. That is why I not olily urge p~~ge of'S. B. 153, but that language be_ added which reflects legal 
standarc:ls similar tO Federal law, Specifically those set forth by the TI'Qfficking Victims -
PrOtection Act of 2000....., ot TVP A. TVPA goe~ beyond the legal test of "coercion" as is the 

. ·current Connecticut standard, mald:ng illegal commercial sex acts which are "induced by force, 
fraud, or coercion or in which the p~ induced.to perfotm such act has not attaiited 
18 years of age" 

In short, this standard adds the dynamics of'force' &Q.d 'fraud' ~those_ methods'by which· a 
young·person can be induced to perform commercial sex acts: It ·ilso states very clearly that 
anyone 17 years of~e ory:ounger is protected within the_legal safe harbor. · 
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In conclusion, CSEC crimes and the inability f9r crimjDal justice in Connecticlit to prosecute 
them are best exemplified by the Federal (!ase of United States vs. Dennis Paris. Tried in 
Federal COurt here in Hartf~rd, it remains one of thel~gest cases ever tried within 
TVP A. In this~. mUltiple victims, some.as YC?ung as 14, were involved in underage 
prostitution in and around Hartford. These victims were not kidnapped·. They were not 
smuggled in from fotErlgn countries. They were from Vermont, N~ Hampshire, and 
some were recruited out of Connecticut high schools. 

We have a long way to go in fighting CSEC crimes in Connectieut. The effort to protect 
these yQUI\g victims wjll include buildingawarerteSs in law enforcement, schoo~, and 
our.~ter communit}r. It.will ~involve passiilg·and enforcing new laws which 
ensur~ thepiosecution ·of those who exploit and abtise young people by promoting 
~exU.al serviCes for money AND those on whoni. the sexual acts are pa,forni.ed. KnoWn 
as 'pimps' and. 'johns,'- both are equally gliilty of commercial sexual exploitation. . 

This new figh~ against an ever increasing crime which has long victilnized our young 
people begins here-~tho~ lawmakers taking courageous steps of leadership. 

Please do·not allow this Qppo~ty to slip away. Right now, these victims are·here, in 
Connecticut. They ~e·in grave danger. And they're wailing for your help. 

Thank you. 
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S.B. No. 153 {RAISED) An Act Providing a Safe Harbor for ExPloited Children. 

Select Committee on Children 
· February 23, 2010 

The Division of Criminal Justice respectfully reco~ends the. Committee take no action on 
s B No 153. An Act P.rovidrng a Safe Harbor for Exploited Children. While the DiViSion apprecjates the 
intent of this legislation and the. efforts of those who work so diligently to identify and assist the 
victims of human trafficking, the bill seeks to address a problem that does not exist in the State-of 
Connecticut 

First.: to be ~fectly clear: the. Division of Criminal Justice is not in the bUsiness' of 
prosecuting the innocent victims of human trafficking or any other crime. We would note that this 
is not eve~ implie~ by the proponents of the bill. Although a "fac:t sheet'' distributed on this bill 
does cite inStances where adults were prosecuted for ~es related to the prostitution of children, 
the~ is no indication whatsoever that prosecution of the children victims in any of the cited cases 
was ever eyen contemplated. Again, to be perfectly clear: if'the propo_nents of thiS bill or any other 
individual is aware of any instance where .the innqcent victim of trafficking has been prosecuted 
for a criminal offense ·we would respectfully ask that they inform the Division immediately so that 
we may review the specific case and take any necessary remedial action. 

The biil also could have unintended coJ15eq1iences. Effectively, it wo~d apply solely to 16-
y~ar-olds who .. are charged with prostitution since a child under the age of 16 cannot legally 
consent to any' form of sexual activity, including an act of prostitution, and thus cannot be legally 
prosecuted for prostitution in Connecticut That said the bill would undermine the ability of the 
criminal justice sys.tem to properly respond in the very rare inStance whe~ a 16-year..:old ·o\ight be 
arrested for pros,t:ltution. As a resu,lt c?f the "Raise the Age" legislation, the 16-year-old woUld be. 
referred to the Superior Court for Juvenile Matters where the case would -likely be resolved 
through the provision of the services and/ or treatment necessary to address the child's behavior· 
and not the sanctions ass~ted with the adult court This bill would only create an additional and 
uimecessary hurdle to getting the sef\1ices provided in such a case_. 

In conclusion, the Division appreciates the intent of S R No 153 and the efforts of those 
who. work to ~rve victims of trafficking, but for the aforementioned reasons we believe this bill is 
.not needed. We would respectfully request no action. 

Respectfully ·submi~d, 
Kevin T. Kane · 

. Chief State's Attorney 
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Goo~ afterno·on Senator Musto, Rep~sentaUve Urban and distinguished inembers Qf the 
Select Coininittee on Children. .. For the recotd, my name is Michelle Cruz and I am the Victim 
Advocate for the State pf Connecticut. Thartk you for the oppommity to submit tc;stimony in 
SUPPORT of: 

Raised Semite Bill No.l53, An Act Providing a Safe Harbor for Exploited 
Cllildi·e11 · "" - - · 

Connecticut is uniquely placed as it is a throughway between New York an" Boston and 
has the potential to become a breeding ground for humim traffickers. As ind~vidual states adQpt · 
new· legislation to 'cQmb~t ht1man trafficking, Connecticut must remaii1 vigilant so that we.not 
only address the human trafficking problen1 in our state, but.·also deter hum~n tr.affickers from 
moving into .otir state 'to begin with. 

Th~·majority of victims in human trafficking cases are woman and young girls. It is 
importa~t to first ~dentify vi~tims as victims, and.furth~, work closely ·with trafficking victims­
many of whom dou't.speak Englisb-:.-to· pl'()~re tbeir help in prosecuting their captors; 
Additionally, there rrmst· be support and services in place to .ensure that traffic~g v.ictims are 
able to cope with the horrors they've be~n through.an.d. get back on their feet. 

· Raised Senate Bill N'o. !53 is a reasonable step to a growing national problem. 
Those individuals Who·are identified as.:victims; through the investigation, should be treated as 
victims and not as defendants. To subject a trafficking victim to an arrest and prosecution only 
compo~mds the harm:and trauma experienced by.th~ victim:. We believe through investigation 
law enforcement shquld ~e able to identify those in~ividuals \vho ate tl"ldy trafficking victims 
and n~t .s.eek pros~ution. However~ the proposed a.ffitmative defense should be available for 
those .individuals who were not identified initially through ·the.initial i~vestigation as trafficking 
victims, as is often the case. 

Thank you for consideration of my testimony. I urge the committee to support the 
proposal. · · 

Very Sincerely, 

~>d.&g_ 
Michelle Cruz, Esq~ 
State Victim Advocate 

Phone: (860) SS0-6632. (888) 771-3126 Fax: (860) S66-JS42 
,JII.A.Dimratil<e Actio111Eq11ol Oppo1"11111ity Employer 
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Pa\11. & Lisa Statement for: S~e Harbor: for Trafficked· Children 

My Name is Denise Holloman, I am representing the Paul and Lisa Progtam, Inc. 

located in Essex, CT. Our organization has been the leading organization .in Connecticut 

for 30 years working with coinmercially sexually exploited women and children. I have 

been fQrlunate to have run the Women's Holistic Health Education Program (an 

alternative to incarceration for women arrested for prostituti9n) in Hartford and. 

Waterbury Community Court five of the nine years since its implementation back in 

1999. 

Statistics.from.our ass~ssment process have shown that, 95 percent of the women 

we have worked with have been sexually abused as children and grow up to perpetuate 
I . 

the abuse by being coerced by pimps or their boyfriends into the life of prostitution. 

Most of them beganprostitutiil.g in their teens as a means to secure a relationship only to 

be victimized again.by the one they love. As ~ey become older, selling their bodies 

assists in supporting their drug addiction. Because ofthe'ir past frame of reference, these 

women look for .love and acceptance in all the wrong places. 

Over the course ofthe ye~s l have worked with a number of particip·ants who 

have started prostituting in their teens. Becalise there were no 18:ws on the books ·at ~t 
tiJn,e to. help this young teen, she suffered from.mental health issues, unsafe housing, . . 
abuse and trauina from her lifestyle that continued into adulthood. She could have 

benefited as well as many of the women I have had the pleasure of working with . 

. Our agency strongly supports the Safe Harbor 'for Trafficked Children bill. 

These children. need to· be protected and referred to the comprehensive services necessary 

to refram.e their thinking·so they can have. a chance to become productive members of the 

community. If this bill was in effect when some of the women were children and were 

arrested came through our program, p~rhaps the victimization. would have stopped 

sooner. 

Now I'd ~~~to read a penpnal. testimony ·from the foi"mer Executive 
Director ofThe Pauland Lisa Program, Shaleen Silva. 

·-~· 
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Good Afternoon Senator Musto, Representative Urban and members of the Select Committee on 
Children: 

My naine. is Nicole von Oy anc;l I am here in support of S.B. 153 "An Act Pl'()viding a Safe. 
Harbor for Exploited Childr.en." I want to thank you for calling this hearing on such an important 
issue. 

For almost a year l had the privilege of working for the P~ul & Lisa Program and fa,cilitating a 
program called My Life, My Choice. In that program, I was working with girls in group homes 
and residential faeilities educating them and giving them the tool~ they needed to keep 
themselve.s safe and recognize· signs of sexual exploitation of children. 

In a few of the homes I facilitated in, I came across girls who were willing to share their stories· 
with me Who at one pomtwere involved in prostitution/human trafficking because they were 
looking for someone·tQ love them; they were lured, co.erced, or forced into it or put into it by 
their parents. These girls didn't wantto be involved nor did they ever want to get in trouble if 
caught, ·although sometimes they wished they would get caught so they would· be saved. Many 
times, girls are leery about running to the police ~ecause they are tau8ht by their traffickers to 
fear the police; twit the police will do nothing but hurt them and send them to jail. Often times, 
this fear is reinforced when they are arrested (by no fault ofthe police except doing their job) Bod 
put in detention centers which often times does nothing but cont4lue to traumatize a girl and 
make them runaway from the facilities right bac~ to the person that is exploiting them. 

Victims of sexual exploitation are frequently processed.as·juvenile delinquents or adUlt 
prostitutes. Children who are arrested for prostitution are trained by their pimps to lie and will 
alinost always:have a rehearsed story·to tell the authorities. Many times the girls are P!ovided 
with an ·excellent false id resulting in their registration in the arrest records as an ~ult which 
could follow them for iife until it i~ corrected by someone that recognizes they are a mfuor. 

Those children who are-identifiable~ rp.inors, may not be arrested for child prostitution per say, 
but often time are charged With a delinquent act either for prostitution ~~~ted activities ~r for a 
related offense such as: loitering, being out past curfew, drug possession or ~itual running 
away. Not every officer'is·collSistentwith which the way they make arrests. One officer may 
arrest for child prostitutioq whiie another may try to give a girl a "break~' and charge her with a 
lesser .offense. In any event, no matter what the girl is being arrested for, being arrested for 
something they have no ~ontrol over is extremely shameful, degrading and humiliating and adds 
to the pain they are ~Y being subjected to. These children: deserve to be referred for.services 
and given the help they n~d to live a meaningful and productive life. This will only begin to 
happen with this law and awareness of the issue. Through thi~ public hearing, the· law making 
proces~. and efforts of advocate~ and constituents, the "Safe .Harbor" bill will effectively raise 

_ awareness amongst ~aw ~pforce~ent, judicial officials, social service .professionals and the 
general public that minors in prQstitution are victiins foremost who require treatment and care to 
prevent re-t;t:aumatization. 

I would like to end my testimony with testimony from a young girl I met through my wotk at 
Paul & Lisa and a girl I continue to mentor. Through much help, courage and ·perseverance she 
has c~ged her life around and took advantage of an opportunity ·that was given to her to go to 
college to pursue her dream of becoming a social worker: 
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SENATOR ROBERT J. KANE 
DEPUTY MINORiTY LEADER 
THIRTY-SECOND DISTRICT 

LEGISLATIVE OFFICE.BUILDING 
SUITE 3400 

HARTFORD. CONNEC'IiCUT OB~o&-1591 
CAPilOL: (BBili 240-81ioO . . . 

TOLL FREE: 1..800-842-1421 
FAX: (BIIQ) 240-8306 

E-MAIL: Rab.Kane@cga.ct.gov 

~tate of GConnettitut 
SENATE 

STATE CAPiTOL 
HARTFORD, -CONNECTICUT 06106-1.591 

Februl!-ry 23, 2010 

SB JS.J An ActProvic/ing a sale Harbor lor Exploited Children 

RANKING MEMBER 
BANKS 

HUMAN SERVICES 

MEMBER 
APPROPRIATIONS 

COMMERCE 

Good afternoon, Senator Musto, Representative Urban, Senator Boucher, 
Representative Hovey, and members of the committee. My name is Rob Kane, and I am 
the Senator. for the 32"".disttict. I .come before you this afternoon to testify in support of 
SB: 153. An Act Providing a Safe HaTbor fur Exploited Children, and to strongly urge this 
committee to pass.the bill. 

The tragic news we read or see ort a daily basis ~ends to 'harden us. With few 
exceptions, almost nothing truly shocks us anymore. But one-of those exceptions is stories 
about chiidren being sexually abused or exploited. Every time I hear of such a horrific 
crime, I am filled with a ·variety of emotions. I am c;lisgusted that there are people who 
would prey_on our innoce~t children. I am saddened. that our sociecy ha5 to deal with such 
crimes.· I am shocked that we do not punish these abQSers 111ore _ha,rshly. I ain heartbroken 
for the lost innQCeilce of.the child. And I am angered_ that there are not sufficient 
P.rograms or policies in place to help heal these children, to help rep.air the damage· done to 
them. 

It is the desire to help ·these abused children get the assistance they need ~at 
spurred me to propose SB .153. The. bill, as I proposed, creates a presumption that any 
minor child who is engaged in prostituti~n was either forced or enticed to do so. It offers 

.. --"protection to a mirtodtom criminal prosecution for actions thii.t'they had no choice but to 
commit. But. my original proposal went well beyond the scope of this bill. It required the 
courts to direct·the child, intq existing social serVice programs !hat could offer assistance in 
safe and secure housing, crisis intervention, counseling, an(,{ other community based 
services. It sought to ·e~sure that there was a safety net in place so that these troubled 
children did not fall through the cracks of society. It·is· not enough to just let the minors 

W::W:C::O}JI::::;J 
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SENATOR ROBERT J. KANE 
DEPUTY MINORilY LEADER 
THIRTY-8ECOND DISTRICT 

RANKING MEMBER 
BANKS 

Hl)MAN SERVICES 

LEGISLATIVE OFFICE BUILDING 
SUITE 3400 

HARTFORD, .CONIIIECTICUT 06196-1591 
CAPilOL: (81!0) 240-8800 

lOLL FREE: 1-8011-842-1421 
FAX: (880) 24()..8308 

E-MAIL: ~b.Kane~.c:t.gov 

February 23, 2010 

SB 153 An Act Providing a Sale Harbor lor Exploited Children 

MEMBER 
APPROPRIATIONS 

COMMERCE 

Good ·afternoon, Senator Musto, Representative Urban, Senator Boucher, 
Representative Hovey, and members of the committee. My name is Rob Kane, and I am 
the Senator for the 32ncl district. I come before you this afternopn to testify in suppon of 
SB ·153, An Act Providing a Safe Harbo-r far Exploited Children, and to strongly urge this 
committee to pass the bUl. 

. The tragiC news we read or see on a da,ily basis tends to harden us. With few 
exceptions, alm·ost nothing truly shocks us anymore. But one of those exceptions is stories 
about children being. sextially abused or exploited. Every time I hear of such a horrific 
crime, I am filled with !l variety of emotions. I am disgusted that there are people who 
would prey on our innocent chUdren. I am saddened that our society has .to deal with such 
crimes. I am shocked that we do not pu_nish these ablisers more harshly. lam heartbroken 
for the lost hmocence ·of the chUd. And I a~ ang~red that dtere are not sufficient 
pro~ms or policies in·place to help heal these children, to help repair the dama,ge done to 
them. 

It "is the desire to help these abused children get the assistance they need that 
. spurred ~e to propose SB 153. The bill, as I proposed, creates a presumption that any · 
minor child who is engaged in prostitution was ·either forced or enticed to do so. It offers 

------· -protection to a mitior from criminal prosecution for ictions-·dianliey had no choice but to 
commit. But my original proposal went well beyond the scope of this bill. It required the 
courts to d•rect the child int0 .~ting social servic~ programs that could offer assistance i.~ 
safe and secure housing, crisis intervention, counseling, and other community based 
services. It sought to ensure that there was .a safety net in place so that these troubled 
children did not fall through the cracks of sociery. It is: not ·enough -to just let the minors 

~---;....·."'-"'· .... · 
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go free, to return them to- a situation that probably gave_ rise to the-ir crimes and troubles in 
the first place. We need to do more. We need to give them a chance to rebuild their lives. 

This bill, modeled on a simUar prop-osal passed into law_ in New York two years ago, seeks 
_to address what is tragically an all too common problem. Some experts estimate that 
about 100,000 chUdren, many as young as 11, are exploited through prostitution: every year 
in the United States. So wbUe we may sit here today and think that such a crime cannot­
happen here, -we are wrong~ It can, a_nd does, happen. And it happens far more often than: 
we would like to admit to o~rselves. 

As ~J~.e~bers of a just society, we should be committed to ensuring that young victims 
of sexual exploitation are ·given eVery possible_ opportunity to_ break.free from emotional 
manipulation and abuse. The first logical s~p is. passing a state law that recognizes the. need­
to protect, not punish, Qtildren and young teens who ~e _apprehended for prostitution. 
The bUl before you tod~y is- a start, but it .does not go £ar enough. I ask you .to exp_and the 
bUl to provide the referra,l to existing socilil services providers that were eliminate_d from_ my 
original-pr6posal. These exploited :and abused children need our help, and deserve every -
chance to reclaim. their lives. Thank you for ~e opportunity to testify in favor of the bill, 
and I would be happy to. answer- any questions you might have. 
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SB 156; AN ACT CONCERNING THE TRANSFER OF EDUCATIONALCREDITS 
SB 153; AN ACT PROVIDING A SAFE HARBORFOR EXPLOITED CmLDREN 

Senator Musto, Representative U~ban, and distingui~hed Members of the Select Committee on 
Childre~:. This tes.~ony is submitted by Lata Herscovitch, Senior Policy Analyst at the 
Connecticut Juvenile J~tice Alliance {Alliance). The Alliance is a statewide, private non-profit 
organization that works to reduce the number of children and youth entering the juvenile and 
criminal-justice system, ap.d advocates a safe, effective and fair system for those involved. 

The Alliance supports Senate.Billl56 which would require Connecticut school districts to 
accept the academic credits that children.earn within the Department of Children and 
Families school district (Unified School District #2) in the·same way that they must accept 
credits from any youth r~entering the district from another school, including the Department 
of Correction's Unified School ,District #1. We know·it has also been a problem for kids not 
getting academic credit for work done whil~ :in juvenile detention facilities and we would support · 
statutory changes to close that loophole. · 

The proposed change fqr USD #2 academic credit. i~ no~-controversial; it is siinply correcting an 
oversight. Without a guaiantee·of credit acceptan~. students can return to their home school from 
a long-term placement think.ing·they have earned enough credits to be a junior, and instead be told 
that the.ir credits won't transfer and they are still freshmen. This unfair situation creates frustration 
and a likelihood of dropout·- which increases the risk of further delinquency._ 

The Alliance is also in sup()Ort of Senate Billl53. the ~tent of which is to recognize that 
children engaged .in p·rostitution ·are victims of sexual exploitation and not criminals. It aims to 
make it more difficultfor·minors to b~ prosecuted for this crime, and comes with the hope of 
connecting them·with services- due to their age, they are ~ligible. for care under Connecticut's child 

· welfare system. The majority of U.S. children involved. in prostitution are runaways and are past 
victims of sexual abuse, physical abuse, neglect, and other forms oftrauma.1 They are manipulated 
and coerced iilto prostitution by psychological, emotional, and physical mearis. 2 

· . 

Although Connecticut law enforcement and other officials do tend to divert these vulnera}>le 
children from the court system.and.refer them to needed social services, current law still allows for 

· criminal prosecution. Under SR 153 a child could·stilllegally be arrested, detained, charged, and 
.prosecuted for prostitution. The'Aliiance supports langyage ·proposed today by Connecticut Voices 
for Children, which would stren:gthen.SB 153 and better protect these vulnerable children by (1) 
directly stating that no child shall be prosecuted for a prostitution offense under Connecticut's penal 
code, (2) more directly link.ing child sex trafficking victims to servi~es and protections, and (3) 
extending legal protections to all minors under the age. of 18 (instead of 17 in SB 1 53). 

Thank you for the opportunity t9 present this testimony. Please let me know if you have 81:1Y 
·questions or would like additional information. · 

247~ Fairfield Av.en~,Je, Bridgeport CT 06605 · 203-579-2727 www .etjja.org 

1 Urbina, Ian, For RRnmllt!Json tbtStrrtt, Sex B'!JS Slmlit~t~l. New York Tkes, Oct. 27,2009. Section A, pg:l. 
2 Kate B?ttle •. "Child Abuse by Another Name: Why the Child Welfare Syslem is the Best Mechanism in Place to Ad({ress 
the Problem of Juvenile Prostitution," Hof.rtm 1...enJ, Rllli1111 (2008),·6, 7. 
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To: Rep. Urban, .Diana; Senator Meyer; Rep. Jarmoc, Karen; Sen. Boucher, Toni; Rep. Mioli, Joe 
Subject: Support HB 5041 

Dear Member of the Select Committe~ on Children: 

I am Writing in· support of HB 5041 (cross-reporting ·of child abuse and animal cruelty) and SB 153 
(safe harbor for exploited children). ~eprest;tntatives of the Center for Youth Leadership at Brien 
McMahon High School, of wHich· I am a member, will testify before your committee on Tuesday, 
February 23. · · 

·Our members have been working on both issues since 2007. We have led public awareness 
activities in southern F-airfield·CoLinty, held discussions with survivors of human trafficking, and 
met with animal· contJ:OI officers- and caseworkers from the Department of Children and 
FamDies. And Qur·volunteer :time with children who have experienced .or witnessed abuse 
includes heartbreaking discussions about cruelty against animals. 

I know you have a lot to do this session, but I cannot think of two more important pieces of 
legislation. Both will help promote the emotional and physical health of some of Conhecticurs 
more vulnerable children and teens. 

Thank you. 

-Maria Caputo 
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From: Kearstyn Folsom [mailto:kearstynfo.lsom@yahoo.com] 
Sen.t:.Sun2/21/2010 1.0:42-PM 
To: Rep. ·urban, Diana 
Subject: 

Dear Meinber of the Select, Committee on Children: 
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I .am writing in S\lpport·ofHB.-5041 (cross-reporting of child abuse and animal cruelty) 
and SB 15-3 ·(sue harbor for exploited children),. R.epr~~~tives of the Center for Youth 

. Leadership at Brien McMahon High School, ·of which lam a meinbet, Will testify before 
your committee on Tuesday, Februaiy 23. 

bur members have been working_ on both issues since 2007. We have led' public 
awareness activities·in.southem Fairfield County, held ·discussions with survivors of 
human traflickiil.g, and met with animaJ. control officers and caseworkers. "from th~ 
Dep~ent ofChil~ llild Families. And our volunteer time .. with chiidren who have 
expenenced or·witnessed abuse includes heartbreaking discussions about cruelty against 
a.nlmals. · · · · 

I know you have a, lotto do tPis session, but I cannot think of two more important pieces 
of legislation. Both will help promote the emotional and physical health of"some of 
Conn~ticut's mor~ V1,1lner$le children and teens. 

Thank you. 
Kearstyn Folsom 
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February 23, 2010 
IIi support o·r HB No. 5041 

I want. to thank the Chairs and the Select Conunittee on Children for this 
opportunity to ~uppoit HB 5041, an act concerning ctoss-rep01;ting ofani~l 
abuse and c~ld ab11S~ and share the i~portance ofconsideriilg a cross­
reporting bill for the children and animals of.Connecticut. My'name is Kate 
Nicoll- and I ·am a clinical soCial worker and founder of nonprofit, Soul 
Friend~, lilc. established .i~ 2003 to prompte the. heaiing ben~fits of the 
human animal bond for children living with loss, illness, trauma and socio­
emotional challenges. 

Soul Friends~ Inc is one of handful of centers ·across the country trained by 
the Animals and Society Institute of Washington, DC to provide specialized 
assessment and care to children .and teens that have both witnessed and/or 
abused animals. This treatmenl modality, callecf Anic~e, is a I 0-12 session 
·specialized psychotherapy program-that integra~es cognitive-l)ehavioral 

· theory , trauma informed practices and a specialized Iaiowledge of the 
.human- ·animal bond to help improve empathic responses and increase 
impulse.corttrol in youth. In research studies, in homes with domestic 
violence, the co-occurrence rate has been from 25% to 80% between child 
abuse and animal ·abuse. The concern for Connecticut children is that we 
have notbeen accurately screenilig those impacted by the lirik.ofanimal 
abuse and domestic violence. We.have not asked for cross-reporting · 
procedures betWeen child care agenCies and animal welfare agencies which 
-wol,lld irilprove service. Consideration of a cross-reporting bill could greatly 

· improve the well-being or'children and animals at risk for abuse and neglect. 

· Soul.Fri~ds has offer~d its expertise to the state Depanment of Children 
and Families in both formal and informal ways_to increase their 
understanding of "the link'; between domesti~ violence, animal abuse and 
child abuse.. Sadly, our nationally supported research effort to study the 
Anicare model was rejected by the DCF Internal Review Board for one . 
identified concern that there were :not'.enpugh cases. However, to share 
some good news, Soul Friends programs. haye· been recognized informally 
by several area DCF offices for o'Lir specialized iit treating children who have 
often failed traditional therapy, as well as those youth who have abused 
animals. 

As encouraged by:R~sults Based Accountability, we seem to have missed 
an opportunity to provide a low cost- high i~pact program to children 
suffering with the effects of domestic violence and animal abuse. The 
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· benefits of instituting a cross-reporting bill is that it would begin to gather 
our own state's co-occurrence rates answering the "how many" question or' 
RBA with the overall goal. to impro"e the well-being and safety of children 
and anima.Is impacted by domestic violence. 

Our state is in a unique position to have multiple ag~ncies with specialized 
knowledge, such as the Anicare program and. Our Companions CT Safe Pet 
program·for providing respite· to animals in crisis.- are·ready willing and 
waiting to respond to tl_le establishment of a· cross-reporting bill.- In recent 
legislative testimonies, DCF has also been open to incorporating a few 
suggested questions on home evaluations that would address the welfare and 
well-being·.of ~imals. The benefits of formalizing a cross.;reportirig 
initiative are that it would ensure that agencies would honor their duty to 
safeguard both children. and animals identified at risk for abuse. As well, it 
would asslire that the agencies. involved are able. to identify and define what 
constitute's negiect and/or abuse in both populations by agreeing on 
definitions and terminology. Allowing things to continue informally ensures· 
that huridreds ofammals and children often fall through the cracks - and will 
suffer .at the .han<is"ofthel.r abuser. Connecticut could put itself in: a position 
to follow on the successes of West Virgini'a, Illinois, Colorado, California, 
Ohio and Virgi~ia and clearly constitute the importance confid~ntiality· and 
consent to share information among disciplines by instituting a cross­
reporting bill to protect both childt~ and animals. 

A cross-reporting bill w<;>uld change our response to the phone call to our· 
offlce from a DCF worker asking what to do with a teenage boy, a witness t_o 
domestic violenc~, who had put a family dog in the microwave and turned it 
-on for a few seconds .. The ahima:l did not die, but. remained in the home.-­
even a~er our strong-suggestions tore-home the dog. The answer to this call 
is a cross-reporting bill- the animal's welfare would have been safeguarded 
and the young man could have received sp~cialized services and decrease 
the likelihood for future abuse and violence. · 

Respectfully SubJilitted, 
Kate Nicoll,.MSW, LCSW 
Executive Director, Soul Friends Inc. 
300 Church Street, Suite 105 
W~lingford, CT 06492 
WWW'.soul-friends.org 
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On behalf of American Humane, the n~on's oldest no~-protit organization dedj.cated to 
protecting children and animals from maltreatment, we ~ Co-Chair Urban for introducing 
House Bill5041 and for scheduling the bill for· a FebruarY 23 Select Committee on Children 
heaiing. . . 

Laws that support front-:line ptofc=ssionals' ability to share .infonnation about suspected cases o~ 
both child and animal maltreatment are critically n~d. American Humane believes that 
identifying all maltreatmentocc\irring in the home is essential to epsuring.family safety, 
sttengtb.ening families, and buiiding humane communities. Cross-reporting is an effective way of 
accomplishing this. 

Links between !IDimal.cruelty and interperson~ violence have been recognized throughout 
history. Reports.b!lve shown ther~ is a significant overlap between child and animal maltreatment 
witJ;Un the home and that, in particul.ar, the identification ofa.nimal abuse and neglect in a home 
may serve as a reliable red tlag for the presen~ of chil!i abuse, and vice versa. 

Cross-reponing law.s encourage parallel referrals between employees of child protection agencies 
and humane enforcement and animal care and control, with the assumption that homes with one 
type .of maltreatment may also be at a high~ risk for ~ditional forms of victimization. These 
laws allow for early intervention, or intervention in homes that may not otherwise have been 
ideritified, in order to prevent further harm. Cross"'reporting also results in combinUlg resources, 
engaging more diverse stakeholders, and preserving fBmily safet)'. 

Children who witness anim,al maltreatment may be traumatized and may be at additional risk for 
committing acts of animal abuse themselves. There may be situations in which pets may be 
targeted in order. to erisure sileilce and compliance from children. 

Moreover, when h1lplane e~orcement and anlmai care ~d control are the first-line respon!iers 
·into a home, they have a unique opportunity to observe an entire family for potential abuse or 
negl~t. Rather than behind closed doors, animal. maltreatment can occur iri a family's yard 
where neighbors ate more likely to see and report their concerns. Encouraging and educating 
h~e enforcement~and animal care and control to cross-report child maltreatment that' they 
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suspect or observe will allow child protective services to respond more rapidly to a family in 
crisis. 

Several states llave enacted statutory language either mandating or perjnitting such reports 
without 'fear of violating confidentiality provision&. .In addition, all states have laws that protect 
child abuse reporters from legal liability as long as reports are made in good faith. Cross 
reporting laws c~te ease and reporting amongst professionals. 

Am~can Humane recoU1Dlends that, in considering passage of HB 5041, the Select Committee 
on Chil~ should consider how to effectively bring law enforcement, animal care and control, 
.and child protection agencies together to develop·inter-agency relationships and collaboration. 
Specifically, we ~ommend consideration of the following: 

• Req~ent forhUID:~e-enforcement.and animal care and control and child protection 
ageilcies to enter a'Memorandum ofUnd~tanding or similar agreement on cross­
reporting; 

• A. provision requiring the agencies to cro·ss..;train on child and animal maltreatment and 
establish an agency policy; 

• Enabling language encouraging humane enforcement, animal care and control and ·child 
protection agencies to make·reasonable and appropriate:reports ofsusp~ted child or 
animil rilalt:rea1ment; 

• Reports should be timely and consistent With any agency policy or state statute; an~ 
• ~ivil and criminal ilnJD.unity for anyone reporting in good faith. 

Thank 'you~ Chair Urban, for oilce again being a chaui.pion of human and animal welfare. Please 
let us know h~w else American Humane can be of assistance in cross-:tq>orting efforts. American 

· Humane is also .a JDember of The National Link Coalition (www.nationallinkcaaJition.org). Please 
consider the CoalitiQQ as an additional resource for these efforts as well.as for Conn~ticut 
agencies desiring to. co~ect wi~ other Link communities. 

Thank you. 

Sincerely,_ 

Allie Phillips, J.D. 
Vice PreSident of Public Policy 

Tracy Coppola, 1.1:>:, M.S.E.L 
Legislative Analyst 

Olfiao. of Public Policy 
2116 Ni•nhWashingtttu SI!\~'Lo SaLiiP :100 

Ali-xamlrill, V'llginia 22~14 
170:{) R.16-i3ll7. (a~ 171131 :.4~54$7 

· rUUJUI.ai1Uifl'iaullrurnmu:.org 
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Senator Musto,.:RepreseiJ.tative Urban, members of the Select Committee on Children, I 
am submitting: testimony on behalf of the Connecticut Municipal. Animal Control 
Officers Association. 

As currently proposed, we oppose Raised Bill No. 5041 (Cross-reporting ofCI#ld 
Abuse and Animal Cruelty} 

Although, in theory, this proposed bill would be very beneficial for the welfare of 
children and artiirials, it comes with .many questions and concerns from an Animal 
Control Officer's poi'nt of view . 

. Being that the majmjty of Animal Control Officers· work. for a local·Police Department 
directly or work closely with them, I would be surprised if any such officer Would neglect 
reportipg any susJJected child abuse case. Regardless, if such reporting is to become 
mandatory, then there must be consid~tion for proper training and protocol.· 

The Department of Children and Families·have·well established gUidelines and training 
for the reporting of suspected child abuse, but yet there is little proposed for the reporting 
of anilllal cruelty. Just as A CO's would need proper training, DCF workers would also 
need to be trai~ed on the identification, of su~pecte~ aniinal cruelty and abuse. 

It is proposed that rq10~ing of Anilnal Cruelty be done so, Qrally, to the Department of · 
Agriculture no later than twelve hours and in writing, no later than 48 hours. DCF, has an 
establishe4,24 hour hot line. l'he Dept. ·of Agriculture is. not opeil irt the evenings or 
weekend bouts. Without reporting such suspecte.d animal abuse directly to local or state 
law enforcement agencies,-so they in tum can notify the local ACO, animals, in need,· 
may not get any type of iielp for days. In many circumstances, this may be too late. 

If it is to be m~e mandatory for DCF workers tQ report animal abuse, what type of 
'penalties w:ould beinStated.for·not reporting an incident? Although.it m~y sound absurd, 
. veterinarians are not·even required to report cases ofanimal abuse. 

The majority (if not all) of those already established as mandated reporters, are licensed 
or certified·intheir professioJIS, yet Animal Control Officers have stiuggled for years to 
establish some sort of mandatory certification and education program through the state 
of CT. Yes, although we are law enforcement offi~ers,Jhere is no mandatory training or 
requiremeP,ts to become· an Animal Control Officer in· the State of Connecticut. 
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Few people re~ize that by defit;ri~ion, Animal Control Officers-are in a very dangerous 
grey area. ACO's are to carry out their duties·"in the sanie manner as a Police Offic_er" 
(CGS 22-330), however, they are not considered Peace Officers, .Public Safety, or Police· 
Officers. Ac.coJ.:ding to current CT law 53a-167c, itis· a Class C felony to assault or cause 
physical harm to a Police Officer, Specilill Police Officer, or a, Peace Officer. This law 
goes on to include members of the Dept. of Corrections, Parole, ·Probation, Judicial, 
Motor Vehicles, Firefighters, EMT's; physicians and nurse staff, Dept. of Children and 
Families, volimteer canine. seatch and rescue meJp.bers, and most recently added, Public 
Transit employees. Where do Animal Control Officers fall? 

· If this proposed cbihll animal abuse bill is to include the efforts on both partS of DCF 
arid Animal Control; Animal Control Officers should, .logic:;ally, at Ute very least, have the 
same prot~~tion against harm as a DCF worker. If AC9's are to have their 
responsibilities extended in an already danger:ous occupation, shouldn't the State of 
Connecticut extend the laws tltat regard the assault of other. employees to include Animal 
Control Officers as well? 

Whether it is-a State ofCT oversight or the ignorance of public perception,. Animal 
Control Officers have· long su(fered tbe ramifications of being in a law enforcement 
"limbo". ACO's put"theirlives on the line everyday, and .deai with the same "bad" 
people and. circumstances as other law enforcement officers yet they are not treated 
equally by any means. (Just this past fall, we tragically lost a dedicated animal control 
officer, who was also 'the president of our state -~imal control association, while she was 

·conducting her duties). 

If Animal.Control Officers are to be given-the added responsibiiity ofmandated reporters 
Qf child abuse, then I can only hope that the State of Connecticut ~ill update their laws to. 
properly certify and define the occupation of an Animal Control Officer (to at least a 
Peace Officer) and to include Animal Control in the laws that protect various other state 
emergency persomiel. . 

·The Connecticut Municipal Animal Control Officers Association would like tc;> offer their 
assistance, in anyway, to 4elp transforl;ll this proposal to a productive bill that will best 
serve the wel(are of both children and aniinals. 

I 1 
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From: Schuyler LOth [mailto:sloth.41@gmail.cor:n] 
Sent: Sun 2/21/2010. 8:37 PM 
To: Rep~ Urban, Diana 
Subject: 

Dear Member ofthe Select Committee on.Children: . . . 

I am writing m Sllpport~-~~s-reporting of child abuse and 
animal czuelty)·amfS~ ri7f ~ .for ~loited children). . 
Repr~tives of the Ceziter·for Youth Leadership at Brien_ McMahon 
High School, of which fam a member, will testifY before your 
committee cni Tu~y. :febniary 23. 

Ou;r memb~ have-been working on both ~sues since 2007. We have led . 
public.aWliieneSs licti~es in so'utbem Fairfield County, held 
discussiOns with survivors of.human trafficking, and met with animal 
eontrol officers and caseworkers from the Depa.rt:ment of Children and 
Families. And our vohmteer time with children whQ have experienced-or 
witnessed abuse includes heartbrealc:ing (iiscussions about cruelty 
against aDimals. 

l know you have a lot to dQ tbis session, but I CliDDOt think _of iwo 
more importantpi.i:ces of legislation. Both will help promote the 
emoponal and' physical hi:alth pf some of Connecticut's more vuinerable 

. children and teens. 

Thank you. 

Sky Loth 

--
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Animal. Abuse and Child Maltreatment: The Need·for Interagency 
Cross-Reporting 

The Evidence 
Researchers in such fields as p~ychology, child development; sociology, criminology, social 
work, law and ~eterinary medicine are addressing the multi-disciplinary nature of animals and 
family v!olence. Key findings include: 
•.If a chil.d is cruel to anim·als, this may be an indicator that serious neglect arid abuse have 
been inflicted on the child. 

• Where serious animal abuse has occurred, other forms of family violence are often 
occurring arid other family members may be at increased risk.ofabuse. 

• Acts or threats of animal abuse may be use~ to coerce, control and intimid"ate women, 
children and elders to be silent about their abusive _situations. These threats to pets often 
prevent women and c~ildren from leaving situations of domestic violence and sexual 
abuse. 

• Childhood crueity to animals has been linked to an increased likelihood of violent 
behaviors against other people both in childhood and in· adulthood. 

• When an animal has been abused there is a greater risk that adults and children in 
.the home have been bitten or attacked by the pet. 

"'A growing body of evidence suggests .that bonds formed or broken with companion animals 
reverberate and resonate ~cross the lifespan. N 

- Mary Renck Jalongo, -Indiana University of 
Pennsylvania, author of '7he World's Children and Their 

Companion Animals: Developmental and Educational 
Significance of the Child/Pet Bondn 

PolicY and practice.ba'sed on knowledge o~The Link may enable professionals. to intervene 
. earlier in order to detect or prevent abuse to children, animals and vulnerable 'adults. 
To achieve this it is essential t~at arrang~!"ents·for communic:~.~!Q~ and cooperation between 
relevant statutory and voluntary.organizations are developed and enhanced. With the 
'compartm~ntalization of social services, these agencies ·have traditionaliy focused on distinct 

· victim groups·; As we begin to recognize that the ecologies of families inClude both people and 
pets, it is apparent that victims may experience many forms of overlapping maltreatment, and 
that interagency collaboration ·would be.beneficial. 
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nHe opened the car door and ordered my 
daughter Christine to kick our dog Dusty o.ut. 

When she refus~d, he told her ... she could watch 
whiie he tortured and killed Dusty and dumped 

her off the side of the road, too. Then he said he 
would come-.home and kill me and Christine 

would be left alone with him. He raped Christine 
her first night alone in our new-home while I was 

at work. She had just turned eight. n. 

-- Mars_ha Millikin, describing her family's experience in nLife 
and Death Inside the Cytles of .liiolehce" 

Many·studies indicat~ that animal maltreatm·ent is part of a complex constellation offamily 
violence. While n·ot .all children who harm animals go on to become violent a.d.ults, and while 
not all adult animal abusers necessarily harm their partners or children, compelling evidence is 
causi~g researchers and p_raf;titioners to view animal ab1,1se as· a "red flag" for other antisocial 
bel:la.yio~s .. investigation and assessmen~ are keys to determining .whether there are any linkS 
between these forms of violence and possible risks to the safety and welfare of children, adults 
and animal's. · 

Phil Arkow· 
Consultant- The Link 
American Humane Association 
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PETS, FAMILIES AND 
INTERAGENCY WORKING 

All agencies, pfofessions and individuals who have 
contact with children have a duty to safeguard them.1 

Government guidance has highlighted the need for 
agencies to work together and share Information to 
achieve this aim. It has been suggested that 
organisations that work with animals should be included 
in the safeguarding agenda on the basis that there may 
be an association between cruelty to animals and family 
violence. This POSTnote examines the evidence base for 
this assumption, and the rationale for cross-reporting 
between different agencies. 

Background 
There is growing interest in the possible relationships 
between cruelty to animals and violence towards people.2 

For instance, animal cruelty sometimes occurs as part of 
a constellation of family violence involving partner and 
child abuse, and animal cruelty by children may precede 
violence in later life. In 2001 the National Society for the 
Prevention of Cruelty to Children (NSPCC) and the Royal 
Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (RSPCA) 
hosted conferences discussing the 'link' between animal 
cruelty, domestic violence and child abuse. A multi­
agency group, the Unks Group, was established to raise 
the profile of the issue, to encourage relevant research, 
and to promote good working practice in relation to 
cross-reporting between agencies. 

Cross-reporting 
Cross-reporting between different agencies occurs on a 
limited scale and in a sporadic manner. In 2008, the 
RSPCA estimates it received 600 referrals from social 
services; these were for a variety of reasons and there are 
no figures for the number that related to safeguarding 
children. New RSPCA inspectors receive some training 
about child protection issues and there are plans for 
inspectors to begin formally recording concerns about 
children in households during investigations of alleged 
animal cruelty or neglect, to report to social services or 

the police if nece5Silry. In 2008, a draft joint protocol 
between the RSPCA and the London Safeguarding 
Children Board was published. This provides guidance on 
when and how agencies should share informatiQn. 3 No 
date for implementation has been agreed, though similar 
guidelines are in use by social services in other parts of 
the country.' 

Despite these developments, there is no overall 
consensus on what cross-reporting should encompass. 
This reflects factors such as differences in organisational 
.priorities, fear of additional workload, and lack of 
knowledge of, or differing opinions about, the nature of 
relationships between animal cruelty, child abuse and 
domestic violence. 

Evidence 
Associations between animal cruelty and other violence 
can be broken down into the categories discussed below. 

Domestic Violence and Child Abuse: Risk to Animals? 
Interviews with women who have been victims of 
domestic violence show that some violent partners also 
harm pets. However, figures vary widely between studies, 
ranging from 25 to 80'Yo.2 Animal cruelty is integral to 
some cases of domestic violence, with threats to harm 
pets being used to control partners or children. In these 
cases, animal cruelty may act as a marker of more severe 
violence. Men who abuse both their partner and the 
family pet use more violence and controlling behaviours 
against their partner than men who abuse their partner 
but not pets. 5 Finally, in families where there is 
confirmed child abuse there can be high rates of animal 
cruelty and neglect. For instance, a US study found 
animal abuse in 88% of families where children had 
been physically abused, and 34% of families where 
children had been sexually abused or neglected. 6 



Many studies are based on samples from domestic · 
violence refuges or families where child abuse has been 
confirmed. These are likely to be the most extreme cases 
and may not represent the full spectrum of domestic 
violence or child abuse. Correlations between animal 
cruelty."and partner a!XJse are moderate and the 
relationship between thein is ilot straightforward. 5 

.... --Animal Cruelty by ~dults: Risk to·Family MemberS? 
In the US, those prosecuted for animal cruelty ar~ rriore 
iikely to ilaite a· crimina·! recorc! for violent offences (37%) 
than·those not cruel to animals (7%), but it is not clear if 
offences involve family violence.2 FiftY-eight per cent of 

. US college.students who report exposure to animal 
cruelty during childhood also report exposure to either 
domestic violence. or·i:hild .abuse? Similarly, in Australia, 
62% of those with animal_.cruelty convictions have 
committed assault and 55% domestic violence.• There 
are few good quality:UK ciata for comparison. 

Animal Cruelty by Children and Adolesi:erits 
Studies on animal cruelty by chiidren and· adolescents 
have tended to focus on two main questions:· 
• are children exposed to child abuse or domestic 

violence more like!y to be cruel to animals? 
• are (ad!.llt) viole'nt offende~ more likely to llave been 

c11.1el to animals whim they were a child? 

Animal Cruelty, Child Abuse and' Domestic Violence 
North American studies tiave shoWn increases in 
childhood anirtlal Cru!!lty in children abused or exposed_ 
to domestic violence.U.10 Adolescents in residential 
treatment for conduct problems who have been !!bused 
show increased rates of animal cruelty (60%) compared 
with those who have not been abused (40%).9 Children 
exposed to dqmestic violenr;:e are 2-3 times more likely to 
be cruel to animals than _those not exposed, though most 
such children are not cruel: between 1 in 6 and 1 in 9 
commits animal cruelty. 10 

AssOciation with Subsequent lnterpersonai Violence 
Studie5.asking people about their past behaviour show 
that 25-66% of violent offenders and 20% of adults in 
the general population report animal. cruelty in child­
hood.2 A meta-analysis of 10 studies, using criminal or 
psychiattic records, found that 25% of _those who were 
violent had been cruel to arjimals, compared with 14% of 
matched controls:11 In chjldren tracked through 
adolescence and early atlulthood there was only a·small. 
association between cruelty to animals at 6-12 years and 
later violent delinquency. 10 ·Cruelty·tha~ is pe~istent, 
varied, lacking in self-restraint and remorse is most likely 
to predict later violence.2 

The view that childhood animal cruelty predicts !ldult 
violence and criminality is now Widely regarded as 
simplistic. It is believed that animal cruelty is just one of 
many manifestations of antisocial behaviour that occur in 
no particular or:ctei' and that may have similar underlying 
causes. This view is supported by: 
• US research showing that childhood animal cruelty is 

as likely to be associated with non-violent crime as 
with violent crime and that animal cruelty is as likely 
to follow as· to precede other offences. 2 
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• A recent UK.study in Edinburgh looking at youth 
transitions'and crime. 12 Some 13% of respondents 
stated that they had harmed an animal on purpose 
between the ages of 13 and 17 years, although· most 
had done this only once or twice. Animal cruelty 
peaked between the ages of 14 and 15 years and then 
gradually declined. For most Of these adolescents, low 
level animal cruelty was a transient stage that was 

-part of a-pattern of other low-level violence and 
antisocial behaviour. Persistent and frequent animal 
cruelty was seim in 1% of children, many of whom 
were afso.involved in persistent interp!_!rsonal violence. 

Using Cruelty to Animals as a Marker 
The limitations·of existing research (see below) have led 
some to can for caution to be exen;ised before using 
animal cruelty as a marker for identifying children or 
families at risk of violence. 2 While certain factors are 
likely to be associated with greater risk of violence -
perSistent, -varied cruelty lacking in restraint or ~emorse, 
in adults or children with other problerns2 - there is 
concem·that qu!llitatively different-acts, such .. as neglect 
of pets, are being used as indicators of risk to child~n. 11 

It is also important to note that there can be a 
statisti.cally significant association between twp 
behaviours without one being a· good marker for the 
other. Overall, childhood animal cruelty is unlikely to be 
a good.single marker for child abuse or to be highly 
prediCtive of future violence. A wider assess_ment of 
family context and general-measures of health and 
adjustment ·are more iikely to be useful in this respect. 

Limitations of Existing Research 
Umitations of existing research that may explain 
contradictory or inconclusive results include the:2·11 

• Lack of an accepted definition of animal cruelty. This 
may vary between studies or may not be defined at all. 
Often a single item on a checklist is used, whereas 
asking about the context, motivation, and nature of 
cruel a~s would be more informative .. 

• Reliance on information from perpetrators, who may 
downplay or exaggerate this aspect of their behaviour. 
Combining information from multiple sources suc;h as 
perpetrators, teachers, and parents may be more 
reliable. 

• Lac~ of longitudinal studies that follow a 
representative population through childhood, 
adolescence and into adulthood. Much existing 
evidence comes fiom studies that examine a group of 
peop!e at one point in time, or are retrospective or are 
~ased on groups such as psychiatric inpatients. 

. Furthermore, many studies have not controlled for 
. factors such as social deprivation. 

• Lack of' a) studies that ask specific:: questions abOut 
attitudes and behaviour towards people and animals 
and bl studies thai test whether programmes that use 
animals to try to develop empathy are effective in 
reducing aggression in general. 



------ Interagency Working 
Cross-reporting Between Agencies 
Wcirkjng Together to Safeguard Children sets out adlfice 
on inter-agency working which is relevant to both animal 
and family agencies when cross-reporting: 1 

• communication and transparency are essential and 
families should be made aware of what information 
will be shared and for what purpose; 

•. consent should be· sought, thougi:J data can be shared 
without consent in some circumstances; 

!" information should be up to date, accurate, necessary 
for the purpose, proportionate to the problem, secure, 
and shared only with those who need to see· it; 

• if there are any doubts then advice can be sought 
without revealing the identity of·tne family. 

When to Cross-report? 
For confidentiality to be breached by allowing cross­
reporting between. agen~ies, a child mu~ be cqnsidered 
to be at Mrisk of significilnt harm•. :rhete is uncertainty 
about what this means with cross-(eporting. Some argue 
that an animal protection agency must have evidence of 
possible harm·to a child (e.g. observation of a child with 
injuries) before cro!!is-reporting. However, the recent draft 
Joint Protocol betw!!!!n the RSPCA and London 
Safeguarding Children Board assumes that suspected 
animal cruelty or neglect i.n a home with children is 
-sufficient grounds to deem a child a~ risk of harm. 3 

This latter approac~ is based on the idea that it is better 
to investigate every case in which there, might be any risk 
of harm to children. In practice however, lowering the 
threshold for what is considered a "risk of significant 
harm• could increase·the·case load for children's social 
services alid is likely to put the families· investigated 
under significant strain, For instance; parents whOse 
children are made the.subject of a child protection plan 
may subsequently be unable to work in certain jobs 
through the Vetting and Barri~g Scheme (see Box 1). 

Neglect 
Most interventions, by both social servic!!S and animal 
protection agencies, ·are to combat neglect. These arl[! 
often cases where, due to.fina11cial or social adversity, 
families require support. to care for family members 
and/or pets. Ci'oss"reporting by ani_mal agencies, may · 
highlight cases· of human neglect that have gone 
1,1nreported. Working Together to Safeguard Children 
provides guidance for..information sharing between 
agencies, such as holisil)g, educatiQn, health ~""ces, 
and the police, to support families with multiple needs. 
Coordination .with animal charities could allow additional 

. assistance- veterinary Care or the prbvision of pet food -
to~ families who are also struggling to care for·pets. 

Pet Fosteri,rig Services 
Domestic violence th~t harms .or. threatens pets can 
indicate a greater risk of interpersonal violence. 5 

Research has.shown that concerns·aboilt pets' safety can 
be a factor that prevents or .delays women from leaving 
an abusive home.2 One consideration for these women is 
that most domestic violence refuges do· not allow pets. 
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Box·l. Vetting and Barring Scheme 
This· scheme; run by the Department for Children, Schools 
and Families with the Independent Safesuarding Authority· 
(ISA), aims to prevent unsuitable people ·from working or 
volunteering with children and vulnerable adul15. From 
November 2010. it is illegal to hire someone to work with 
children or vulnerable adults H they are not regiStered with 
the lsA. Individuals can be barred from these jobs if: 
• they are convicted or cautioned lor certain offences 

· · ·(e.g., murder, sexual offences, child abuse or neglect, 
child abduction by parent, disorderly and indecent 
behaViour); 

• the ISA decides that .the person ·.may pose a risk to 
ch.lldren or vulnerable adults (see below). 

Agencies .such as social services and the Criminals Records 
Bureau· will have a 5t!ltutory dutY to make referrals to the 
ISA If they have information that they beli1J!18 may Indicate 
th!lt a person poses a risk to children or vulnerable adults. A. 
conviction, caution, or investigation lor ariimal cruelty or 
neglect will be referred tQ the ISA. This.is unlikely to lead to 
a bar on Its own, but if It co-exists with other offences (such 
as jlossession of drugs), or other 'soft' irifonnation (such as 
pollee or social services reports), i.t may lead ~ a bar. H 
individuals are considered· for barring, they will be invited to 
make representatiOns, within 8 weekS, as to why they 
shou'd not·be barred. 

·Pet fostering. servi~~ (see Box 2) can help, but they 
often Jack funding, so that some families are turned away 
and some areas of the country are not covered. 

Cruelty to Animals and Children 
· Different agencjes use a number of standai'd asSessments 

for children and young people in need of services. 
Including questions about pets in these would have a 
number of Potential advantages, such as: 
• identifying severe, persistent animal cruelty by 

children, which ~ccompanies other condL!ct problems 
and so warrants further investigation; 

• asking children about pets may encourage them to talk 
more openly about their experiences in the home, 
including family violence; 

• pets can foster resilience in children who are 
vulnerable because of abuse or youth offending.2 

Involving animal protection professionals in case 
conferences or multi-agency panels may help in making 
decisions· about whether to support the family in keeping 
i~ pets, to remove pets from the household, or to enable 
children to have supervised contact with pets. 

Barriers"~O Cr9ss-rep.orting 
Cross-reporting between animal and human services is 
currently not widespread. Veterinary surgeons (vets) may 
be reluctant to report suspected animal cruelty or neglect 
to the RSPCA if they have not received specific; training in 
this area, do not have ready access to 'expert advice' 
about animal cruelty or other family violence, or are 
worried about their reputation if they are seen to be . 
breaching client Confidentiality. The following sections 
descri~.approaches to dealing with such barriers. 
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Box 2. Paws for Kids 'Safe Haven' Project 
Paws for Kids is a domestic violence charity baSed in the 
North West of England. When WO"!en are leaving violent 
households the whole family- parent, children, and pets -
need services. If a woman is entering a domeslic violence 
shelter that does not accept .pets thl!n Paws "for Kids 
arranges fOr pets to be placed In f~ homes fOr up to 9 
months, reuniling owner and pet when the family is settled 
In a riew home. Additional services aim to provide praclical 
and emolionai support arid include individual ind family 
group counselling, peer support jpoups, and pmjects (art 
and drama, ouldilor pursuitS; etc). The pmject helps women 
to escape from vi!llenl homes knowing that. their pets Will 
not be left behind, and then supports the family as it comes 
to terms with its experiences. The prilject's record for 
improving outcOmes fOdamilies: such is f~ subsequent 
evlclions from public housing and reduced antisocial 
behaviour in children, has led to partnership with the local 
authority. · 

Mandatory Reporting of Animal Cruelty 
Mandatory reporting by ve~ Of suspected animal. cruelty 
lias been suggested as a necessary first step to effective 
cross-reparting. 1a This would reQuire: legislative change; 
the Royal College Of Veterinary Surgeons (RCVS) to 
govern traini!'lg and assessment .Of vets in identifying 
animal cruelty; and clear reporting procedures to be 
established locally·and nationally. Mandatory reporting 
has been introduced in th~ US, Canada l!nd New 
Zealand. The RCVS does. not cu~ntly support such a 
move, suggesting this would remove vets' capacity to 
make professional judgements and mean that the 
veterinary prOfession would be out of step with other 
prOfessions (where mandatory reporting has not been 
introduced). There has been no systematic attempt to 
establish the extenrof under-reporting of animal cruelty. 

It has been suggested that mandatory reporting might 
lead to greater reporting of cases. with a relatively low 
index of suspicion, thiJS increasing the workload of the 
RSPCA and the risk that innocent families might be 
inyestigated. There is evidence that the introduction of 
mandated reporting of suspected child abuse in the US 
and Australia cOincided with an increase in the number 
and proportion of unsubstantiated reports. 14 

Improved Education 
Some suggest that th!! full range of groups that deal with 
families and pets could benefit from education about the 
relationships between cruelty' to a·nimals.and other 
violence. While the RCVS provides some guidance, there 
is no ~quirement for vet schools to teach about animal 
cruelty, and it is.not often covered as part of continuing 
professional development. One ·way Ot addressing this 
would be via a cross-disciplinary education pack 
approved by all the professions involved. 

In autumn 2008, the Unks Group initiated discussion 
with the veterinary prOfessional associations about the 
future direction of veterinary ·ed_ucation about animal 
cruelty and family violence.· A guidance document 
outlining how veterinary practices should deal with cases 

· of animai cruelty and family violence will be published 
shortly with an executive summary sent to practices to 
raise awareness. 
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Local Networks 
Effective inter-agency working requires prOfessionals to 
make local. links with other agencies to tiuild a network 
that can provide advice and support, even when formal 
cross-reporting might not be appropriate. One approach 
would be to develop and distribute posters to agencies, 
which contain local information about whom to contact if 
there are concerns abOut animal cruelty or family 
violence. This could include domestic violence shelters, 
social·services, the NSPCC, the RSPCA, and the police. 
Unks between local agencies would also ensure·that they 
received feedback about the outcome of referrals and that 
work is coordinated. For example, the Scottish SPCA 
aims to communicate with social services and the police, 
to avoid its interventions from interfering with police or 
social services operations. · 

Overview 
• There is evidence of an association between animal 

cruelty and interpersonal violence. 
• However, animal cruelty alone is unlikely to be highly 

predictive as a marker for violence towards people. · • · 
• Nevertheless, agencies that work with animals and 

those that work with families are starting to work more 
closely together and to cross-report cases. 

• While there are benefits of closer inter-agency working, 
there is a debate over when cross-reporting between 
animal and social care agencies is appropriate. 

• PrOfessional education, formation of local links 
between relevant animal and social care agencies, and 
mandatory reporting of suspected animal cruelty by 
vets have all been suggested as options. 
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Froin: .Rabinowitz, Peter [mailtc;J:peter.rabinowitz@yale.edu] 
Seni:: Wednesday, February 17, 2010 8:37 AM 
To: Rep. Urban, Diana 
Subject: ~s reporting of human and animal abu~ 

Dear Ms. Urban, 
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I am_a faculty member·at the Yale School of Medicine, and am interested in the overlap between 
human and animal health. 
I hear:d on our locai·NPR st.ation last night about your proposal for cross reporting of abuse 

. between a~imal control and human l)ealth agencies. This sounds like a great idea for the­
reasons you put forward. I wanted to m~ke you aware that I have recently published a clinical 
textbook· for doctors. veterin_arians, and public health professionals about Human .. Animal 
medicine issu~s that includes a chapter on psycho~cial issues and a discussion of the need for 
su~h cross-reporting. 
The textbook is called "Human-Animal Medicine" -{see 
·http://www.us.elsevierhealth.com/ISBN/9781416068372/HumanAnimai-Medicinel. 
I also wanted to: ma~e VOL! aware of a movement by human and animal health professionals to 
encourage gr~ater iliterdisciplinary cooperation in a "One Health" model- (see 
http:l/www.oneheaithinitiative.comD. 
Perhaps thes~ can s~rv~ as resources to support your efforts, 
With bes.t wishes, 
Peter Rabinowitz MQ MPH 
Associate Professor of Medicine 
Yale Unive~ity School of Medicine 
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F.rQm: Bob ~ocienc!a [mailto:bkocienda@yah9Q.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 16, 2010 6:00 PM 
To: Rep. Urban, Diana 
Subject: erOss-rePQrtlng with DcF 

Dear Rep. Urb!lD -

0.00209 

0~ behili of the 132 members ofthe Senators Community Foundation, I am writing to 
thank you for sponsoririg a bill that calls for cross-reporting betwe~ DCF casewot~ers 
and animal contrc?l officers. As you kno~. the-Senators Comm.J,J.Dity.Foundation is a . 
program of the Center· for Youth Leadership, which is baSed at Brien McMahon High in 
NorWalk. · 

Cross-reporting is .one of the major child abuse s_ocial cbange items that our ~embers 
have been promotiiig with local and State-wide officials. IIi fact. we're hosting a meeting 
on Friday -with ·the animal: control officer in Norwalk and a caseworlcer from. the DCF 
office in Norwalk:-Stalnrord. Would you believe that the animal.cant:tol officer has never 
met Wl.th DCF caseworkers in his 23 years on the job? 

The purpose of the meeting is the implementation of a cross.; "reporting and cross-training 
initiative in Norwalk-:Stamford. We know this is a process; some~g·that will take time 

. to implemep.t county-wide. But it's an important step if we're gQing· to -nia,ke change 
happen. I will. keep ·you posted on developments. 

Thanks for your support of s~ch an: important issue. Bob 

B_o_b Kociend~ 
Ce~ter"for :Youth Leadership 
.Brien McMahon High School 
3oo· Highland Aveinie. 
Norwalk, Connecticut 06854 
203/852.9488 (phone) · 
'203/899.2413 (fax) 
www.gocyLorg 
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From: xd:leetahgir1s93@aol.coin [mailto:xcheetahgirls93@aol.comJ. 
Sent: :sun 2/21/2010·9:36 PM · 
To:. Rep, urban, Diana 
Subject: 

Dear Member of the Seiect Committee on Children: 

[am writing in supp~ ofHB 5041 (cross-reporting ofcblld_a~ and 
animal cruelty) arid})B 'J 53 (safe harbor for explciited children). · 
RepreSentative~. of th!:' <;:enterfQr Youth Leac:ieiSl!,ip_ at Brien McMahm~: 
High School,.ofwhich I am a member, Will testify before your committee 
on. Tuesda:y, F:~bruary -23. 

Our-members have p_e~ working on both i!lsues since 2007. We have 1~ 
public awareness activities in southern Fairfield County, held 
dis~sions With sliJ;Vivo~ of ln¢1an traflickiDg, and met with imimal · 
.comrol officers and caseworkers from the Department of Children and· 
Famil.ies. And 'Olir voluilteer time with children who have experienced or 
witnessed abuse includes heartbreaking disi:ussions about.cruelty 
against animBls. · · 

I know you b&ve alot tO do this session, but:l cannot ihink ~nwo 
more important-pieces oflegjslatioD.. Both will help promote the 
emotionat and physical he8J.th of some of .Connecticut's more vulnerable 
children ind teens. · 

. Tbailk }'oiL 

Daniela Calderon 
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Center for Youth Leadersh_ip - V ~ 
· Why wait f6r· someone else to ma~e a diffe~ence? · · ~ 

Conn~lcut Assembl!.f'S ·Select Committee on Children 
Testimony, ·Februaly.~, 2010 

Introduction 

Good qfternoon Senator Musto, Representative !Jrban, and members of the 
committee. We ~ave a special greeting for Senator Bo~che~, who has worked with us on 
legislation about teen dating violence and· human trafficking, and Representative Mioli, who 
participates in the child abuse public ·awareness events we hold every year at th~ State. 
Capitol. · 

My name is·'Laura Knox and I am from the Center for·Youth Leadership, which is 
base~ at Bri~ McMahon High School in Norwalk. Joining me is Sk•i Loth, who is also a 
member of the .Center. 

On behalf of the 223 student activists at 'the Center fol" Youth Leadership, we are 
here to testify in support of .HB ·5041, which. calls for cross-reporting of child abuse and 
animal ~ruelty, and SB 153 which is. the safe harbor bill for eXploited children. We'll talk 
first about cross-report.ing. 

HB5041 
Cross-R~porting of Child Abuse 
and Anbna:J Cruelty · 

Child abuse prevention has ~een th·e focus of ·our public awareness and social change 
campaigns since 19~9. The fact that the link between animal cruelty and child abuse is just 
the fifth subtopic that we've added to our· work since .then points to its importance for us. 

. ' 

Since 2008 we've been working on bringing cross-training ·and cross-reporting to 
animal .controt: officers and Department of Children and Families caseworkers in lower 
Fairfield County. To that end, we ·followed. the outcQmes of the meetings that were 

300 Highland: A-venue • Norwalk, Connectic"'t 06854 • 203.852.9488 
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Center for Youth Leadership 
TeStimony in· support of HB 5041, SB 153 · 

l."Will DCF caseworkers and animal" control officers cisk.about animal cruelty and child ·abuse 
cis a matter of r()utine, or will it be based on a c~ual visual observation only. "For example, 
will [)CF· caseworkers add a sc,reen for .animal cruelty to t!'le screens it uses to assess 
domestic violence, substance abuse and 'ot!'ler iss1,1es when investigating a case? Will the 
software that J)CF uses have· to be adjusted to accommodate caseworkers' notes about 
animal cruelty? 

2. According to the bill, if a· DCF caseworker not¢5 animal cru~lty during a home visit, 
he/she will need to report it. Let's say the casework~r also suspects child abuse in the 
familY. How will the caseworker report the suspected animal cruelty without·c()mp_romising 
the family's identjty? · 

3. Has anyone· assessed how HB 5041 will affect the train.ing and work of animal control 
officers? W,e did.notsee any reference to this in the language of.the bill. 

4. Who will put "together the training that we assume animal control officers and 
caseworkers will need to complete? 

. . 
5. Let's say HR 5041 becomeS law. Who will" de5ign and implement an evalua.tion to see how 
the law is working thre·e-six-nine months after it is· e11acted? 

We will" continue to· work to bring cross-reporting of animal ·cruelty and child abuse_ 
to lower Fairfield Coun1)i. Thanks for the opportunity to share. our thoughts with you. 

SB.153: Safe flarbor for Exploited Children 

As.Laura said, my name is Sky· Loth and o_n behalf oft~e 223 members of the Center 
for Youth'Leaderstlip I am here in support of SB 153 Safe Harbor for· Exploited Chiidren. 

You are a runaway or throwaway ki~. No one will take you in - no aunts, no uncles. A 
friend's family thought about helping you~ but then they thought again. You hit the streets 
with the clothes on your back and a slim sense of how you're going to make it. 

Some .guy· calls to you from his car. You ignore him. He calls to you ·again two days 
later, and four days after that. The car looks nice. He seems friendly. You're hungry and 
you need a place to sleep. Y(;ur gut tells yQu that ~epping off -the curb and into his car may 
not be the. best thing. But y~ur gut also needs food. So, you step off the curb and into ~ 

-3-
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Center for.Youth Leadership 
Testimony in support of HB 5041. SB 153 

world of servicing m~n. none of w~om. you know, none of whom care who you ar.e. The only 
one ·who cares is th~ pimp who trafficks you from man to man, ·location to location, with the 
occasional beating thrown in. 

This girl from a city in ·coMectit:ut actually survived longer t~an some. According to 
the National Incidence Studi~ of Missing·, Runaway and Throwaway Children, of the 
estimated 1.5 million children who will run away from liome this year, tens of thousands will 
sp~d time working for sexual. predators and selling their bodies on the streets;· many will. 
be lu'"~ into prostitution within 48 hours of leaving; home. 

I have never been trafficked, nor have any of my frien~s. but we are concerned for 
teens ii'l CoMecticut who have, especially .if 58 153 does not become law. ' We have been 
working on traffic~ing_ since 2006, which is when we hosted. a workshop that featured 
experts from Save the Children, the U.S. A"tt~rriey's Office, the Permanent Commission on · 
the Status of Women and Micheline Slattery. Micheline's ~tory as a restavec (or slave) in 
Haiti is what compelled our·members·to act. 

Since then we have continued our research, led. scores · o_f .public awareness 
activities, and made·a conscious decision to focus on the trafficking· of children and teens .in· 
the U!"ited $tates. It would have been easy to focus on i~ternational trafficking; but we 
were concerned abol.it perpetuating t!'le myth, at least among people my age, that trafficking · 
do~ f'IOt happen right here !n Co':'necticut. 

We have come to the conclusion that states. need to stop charging children - some as 
young as 11-12 _year.s old - with prostitution and locking them up. Why re-traumatize a child 
who has been sexually exploited for ·someot:~e else's gain? Connecticut is not alone in this 
approach. The 8art~n Child Law and Policy Clinic ~t the Emory University School of Law 
found . that.- nearly all states allow children of . j_ust about. any age to ~e prosecuted for 
prostitution. - even though children are too young to consent to Sel.C with adults. We 
believe every state s~ould provide se)cually exploited children born in this country with-the 
same protections and services that are routinely granted to international victims. 

We were pleased to see ·that 58 153 has tak.en into account the farsighted 
legislation enacted in New York, under whiCh children. arrested for prostitution would be 
presuin_ed to be vi_ctims of sexual trafficking and given protection and so.cial services~ We 
do not see any benefit to a teen - or the State of Connecticut - if a teen is locked up for a 
crime that sh~ was coerced into committing. As _many people have noted, charging children 
with the crime of prostitutiot'l • ~.compounds the harm done to them and deep~ feelings of 
guilt an~ worthlessness -that hCiunts victims of sexual exploitation. • 
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Center for Youth Leadership 
Testimony in· support of HB 5041. SB 153 

·Keeping children and teens out of the criminal justice system and hooking them up 
with services is in keeping with a growing movement in southern ·Fairfield Cotinty. For 
eXample, our. sister progi"Qm in Stamford _runs a. juvenile review board, as does the City of 
Bridgeport, and ou.r homet~wn of Norwalk runs a street. level outreach program to teens. 
Granted, n~ither· deals' with hardcore issues like trafficking, but their $1-~te~ purpose of 
keeping teeri$ ou.t of jail and referring· them to community based care is something th_at 
.should be afforded to children an"d teens who have been trafficked. 

Finally,, we agree with our friends at Love 146 and the Barnaba Institute that the 
language in 58 ·153 should be' changed to bring it in line with -connecticut's Raise the.Age 
legislation and to insure that prosecuting a chil~ for prostitution is not an option.: The last 
thing someone my age needs ·is a cri~irial recor~ for: ·so"'ef~ing that I w~s forced to do 
against my wil.l; that wi_ll stigmatize me; and that may compromise my ability to heal, 
reconnect with.my family, and to find a job. or enroll in sc~ool. · 

Thank you .. 

Center for. Youth Leadership-at Brien McMahon High School 
300 Highland Avenue, Norwqlk, Connecticut 06854 

203.852.9488 and ww.gocyl.org 

February 23, 2010 
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